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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

The Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Clinton, Cklahoma

Report on the Finanicial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Clinton, Oklahoma,
as of and for the year ended June 30, 2015, and the related notes to the financial statements, which

collectively comprise the City of Clinton, Oklahoma's basic financial statements as listed in the Table of
Contents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable fo financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's
internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Clinton, Oklahoma, as of June 30, 2015, and
the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

MEMBER OF AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOLINTANTS
MEMBER OF OKLAHOMA SOCIETY OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
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Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's
discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information as listed in the table of contents be
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be
an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information
and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.
We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures
do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City of Clinton, Oklahoma's basic financial statements. The introductory section, combining
and individual nonmajor fund financial statements, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and
are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The schedule of expenditures of federal awards is
presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget
Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profif Organizations, and is also not a
required part of the basic financial statements,

The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and the schedule of expenditures of
federal awards are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconcifing such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining and individual nonmajor
fund financial statements and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards are fairly stated in all material
respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. -

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 14,
2015, on our consideration of City of Clinton, Oklahoma's internal control over financial reporting and on
our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and
other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal
control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report Is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering City of Clinton, Oklahoma’s internal control
over financial reporting and compliance.

Pty M oordals « Miflar
BRITTON, KUYKENDALL & MILLER

Certified Public Accountants

Weatherford, Oklahoma
December 14, 2015

4
BRITTON, EUYKENDALL & MILLER . CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS . WEATHERFORD, OKLAHOMA 73058



CITY OF CLINTON, OKLAHOMA
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS
JUNE 30, 2015

Our discussion and analysis of the City of Clinton’s financial performance provides an overview of the City's financial
activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015, The City's performance is discussed and analyzed within the
context of the accompanying financial statements and disclosure following this section. This discussion focuses on
the City's primary government, and unless otherwise noted, component units reported separately from the primary
government are not included. Please read it in conjunction with the City's financial statements, which follow this
section.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

e The City's assets exceeded its liabilities by $55,203,487 (net position) for the fiscal year reported. This
compares to the previous year when assets exceeded liabilities by $52,437 745 (restated).

+ Total liabilities of the City increased by $28,984,119 to $51,064,147 mainly due to issuance of $29,450,000
of bonds to build a water treatment plant.

s Total net assets are comprised of the following:

(1) Invested in capital assets, net of related debt, of $36,310,373 includes property and equipment, net of
accumulated depreciation, and reduced for outstanding debt related to the purchase or construction of
capital assets,

(2) Net assels of $9,325,002 are restricted by constraints imposed from outside the City such as debt
covenants, grantors, laws or regulations.

(3) Unrestricted net assets of $9,568,112 represent the portion available to maintain the City’s continuing
obligations to citizens and creditors.

« The City's governmental funds reported total ending fund balance of $6,521,275 this year. This compares
to the prior year ending fund balance of $7,177,978 showing a decrease of $656,703 which includes a
restatement of $423,752 from prior years.

« At the end of the current fiscal year, unreserved fund balance for the General Fund was $2,847,652, or
32.27% of total General Fund expenditures including transfers and 33.47% of General Fund revenues
including transfers.

Overview of the Financial Statements

Management's Discussion and Analysis introduces the City’'s basic financial statements. The basic financial
statements include: (1) government-wide financial statements, (2) fund financial statements, and (3) notes to the
financial statements. The City also includes in this report additional information to supplement the basic financial
statements.

Government-wide Financial Statements

The City’s report includes two government-wide financial statements. These statements provide both long-term and
short-term information about the City's overall status. Financial reporting at this level uses a perspective similar to
that found in the private sector with its basis in full accrual accounting and elimination or reclassification of internal
activities.

The first of these government-wide statements is the Statement of Net Position. This is the City-wide statement of
financial position presenting information that includes all of the City’s assets and liabilities, with the difference reported
as net position. Over time, increases or decreases may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position
of the City as a whole is improving or deteriorating. Evaluation of the overall economic health of the City would extend
to other nonfinancial factors such as diversification of the taxpayer base or the condition of the City infrastructure in
addition to the financial information provided in this report.

The second government-wide financial statement is the Statement of Activities which reports how the City's net
position changed during the current fiscal year. All current year revenues and expenses are included regardless of
when the cash is received or paid. An important purpose of the design of the statement of activities is to show the
financial reliance of the City's distinct activities or functions on revenues provided by the City's taxpayers.

Both government-wide financial statements distinguish governmental activities of the City that are principally

supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, such as grants, from business-type activities that are intended
to recover all or a significant portion of their costs though user fees and charges. Governmental activities include
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CITY OF CLINTON, OKLAHOMA
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS
JUNE 30, 2015

general government; public safety and judiciary; transportation; cultural, parks and recreation; and public services.
Business-type activities include water and wastewater utilities, solid waste management, airports, recreational
activities, health care, and economic development. Fiduciary activities such as employee pension plans are not
included in the government-wide statements since these assets are not available to fund City programs.

The City's financial reporting entity includes the funds of the City (primary government). Most of the legally separate
organizations operate like city departments and serve as financing vehicles for the City services (revenue bond
issuers), or are governed by a board of trustees wholly compromised of the City's Mayor and Council. These
organizations are blended into the primary government for financial reporting purposes. The blended organizations
reported as City funds include Clinton Public Works Autharity, Clinton Solid Waste Authority, Clinton Airport Authority,
Recreation Trust Authority, Clinton Hospital Authority, and industrial Authority activities.

Fund Financial Statements

A fund is an accountability unit used to maintain control over resources segregated for specific activities or objectives.
The City uses funds to ensure and demonstrate compliance with the finance-related laws and regulations, Within the
basic financial statements, fund financial statements focus on the City's most significant funds rather than the City as
a whole. Major funds are separately reported while all others are combined into a single, aggregate presentation.
Individual fund data for non-maijor fund is provided in the form of combining statements in a later section of this report.

The City has three kinds of funds;

Governmental funds are reported in the fund financial statements and encompass essentially the same functions
reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, the focus is very different
with fund statements providing a distinct view of the City's governmental funds. These statements report short-term
fiscal accountability focusing on the use of spendable resources during the year and balances of spendable resources
available at the end of the year. They are useful in evaluating annual financing requirements of governmental
pragrams and the commitment of spendable resources for near-term.

Since the government-wide focus includes long-term view, comparisons between these two perspectives may provide
insight into the long-term impact of the short-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet
and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in the fund balances provide
reconciliation to the government-wide statements to assist in understanding the differences between these two
perspectives.

A budgetary comparison statement is included. This statement demonstrates compliance with the City's adopted
and final revised budget.

Proprietary funds are reported in the fund financial statements and generally report services for which the City
charges customers a fee. There are two kinds of proprietary funds. These are enterprise funds and internal service
funds. Enterprise funds essentially encompass the same function reported as business-type activities in the
government-wide statements. Services are provided to a customer external to the City organization such as the
water utilities and the City golf course. Internal service funds provide services and charge fees to customers within
the City organization such as equipment services (repair and maintenance of City vehicles). Because the City's
internal service fund primarily serves governmental functions, they are included within the governmental activities of
the governmental-wide financial statements.

Proprietary fund statements provide both long-term and short-term financial information consistent with the focus
provided by the government wide financial statements but with more detail for major enterprise funds.

Fiduciary funds such as the meter deposit fund are reported in the fiduciary fund financial statements, but are
excluded from the government-wide reporting. Fiduciary fund financial statements report resources that are not
available to fund City programs. Fiduciary fund financial statements report similarly to proprietary funds.
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Notes to the financial statements

The accompanying notes to the financial statements provide information essential to a full understanding of the
government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements begin immediately following
the basic financial statements.

Other Information
Major funds and component units are reported in the basic financial statements as discussed. Combining and
individual statements and schedules for non-major funds are presented in a subsequent section of this report.

Financial Analysis of the City as a Whole

As year-to-year financial information is accumulated on a consistent basis, changes in net assets may be observed
and used to discuss the changing financial position of the City as a whole.

The City's net position at fiscal year end was $55,203,487. This is a net increase of $2,765,742 (including a
restatement of $3,280,882) over last year's net position of $52,437,745. The following table provides a summary of

the City's net assets at June 30;
Summary of Net Position

Governmental Actlvities Buslness-type Activites Totals $ Change % Change
2015 2014 2018 2014 2018 2014
Cument and otherassets $ 7,891297 5 8,260,594 5 41111,643 § 14,672,748 $49,002.940 §$22,033,342 5 26,065,598 53.2%
Othernoncurrent assets 1,046,920 31,287 10,580,821 12,477,820 11,627.841 12,508 117 3 (BB1,276) -T.8%
Capital assets 20,603,044 45,056,362 25,732,831 22,964,458 48,338,875 42,026,818 $ 4,318,057 9.3%
Total assets 29.542.161 27,348,253 77,425,495 850,115,024 106,967,658 77,463,277 § 29,504,378 27.6%
Detforred outflows of resources 469,103 - 220,005 366,875 689,108 366,875 322,433 45.8%
Long-temiiabilities 2,338,783 2,886,710 44 BSD,181 1. 072647 47,228,974 19,969,357 § 27,259.6%W 57.1%
Ctherliabilities 1.383.084 1462.528 2452079 3,030,322 3,835 473 5422850 § (\BBV.B7V) ~414%
Total Habilities 3,721,887 4,389,238 47,342,260 21,002,869 51,064,147 25,302,207 § 25671940 50.3%
Doferred Inflows of resourcos 1,389,130 - 1,389,130 - 1.365,130 L0.0%
Net position:
invested in capifaiassets, netof
related debt 20,431,194 19,056,382 15,879,179 15,070,386 36,310,373 34,126,748 §  2,%83.625 60%
Rastricted 09,792 104,449 9,215,210 8,745,858 9,325,002 8,850,007 & 474,585 5.4
Unrastriced 4,358,281 3,708,504 5,208,851 5,662,486 9,568,112 9,460,940 5 107,122 1T
Total net position 524,800,247 $ 22055015 $2301303,240 3$2047BY30 $55203487Y $52437.745 § 2765742 5.0%

The City reported positive balances in net assets for governmental activities, noting an increase of $1,941,232 {less
a restatement of $3,280,882). The most significant change is the net pension obligation recorded in governmental
funds- the financials reflect a net pension lability of $1,139,401. Business-type activities net assets increased
$824,510,

On June 14, 2011, City voters approved a special purpose sales tax of .85 cents for the purposes of the Acme Brick
Park debt service, police and fire department construction, and economic development. The tax became effective
October 1, 2011, and continues through August 31, 2019,
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Comparative data is accumulated and presented to assist analysis. The following table provides a summary of the
City’s changes in net position for the year ended June 30:

Summary of Changes in Net Position

Governmental Activities Business-type Activites Totals $Change % Change
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014

Revenues
Program Revenues

Charges for services $ 1,088,145 § 1,105641 $ 7430165 $ 6642901 $ 8518310 $ 7749542 § 768,768 10%

Operating grants and

contributions 125,593 155,932 192,448 200,987 318,041 356,919 (38,878) -11%

Capital grants and

contributions 1,833,693 113,094 929,490 517,000 2,763,183 630,094 2,133,089 339%
General Revenues

Sales taxes 5,549,113 5,762,730 = = 5,549,113 5,762,730 (213,617) -4%

Use taxes 510,224 702,495 - - 510,224 702,495 (192,271) -27%

Hotel/motel taxes 379,252 409,545 = = 379,252 409,545 (30,293) -7%

Property tax (TIF) 116,690 117,388 116,690 117,388 (698) 0%

E-911 taxes 100,020 96,836 = = 100,020 96,836 3,184 3%

Franchise taxes (fees) 386,111 338,548 - - 386,111 338,546 47,565 14%

Cigarette taxes 66,365 68,665 - - 66,365 68,666 (2,301) -3%

Cther taxes 56,046 54,768 - - 56,046 54,768 1,278 2%
QOil & gas royalities 297,851 58,294 78,564 202,607 376,415 260,901 115,514 44%
Investment income 70,187 87,203 153,681 141,773 223,868 2289786 (5,108) -2%
Cther 13,760 15,998 1,069 27 14,829 16,925 (2,098) -12%
Pension change 797,702 - - - 797,702 - 797,702
Penalties - - 87,062 62,912 67,062 62912 4,150 7%
Gain on disposal of assets (42,280) (47,129) (1,028) (49,548) (43,308) (96,875) 53,367 -55%
Transfers - internal activity (1,973,948) 1,596,038 1,973,948 (1,596,038) - - - 0%
Total Revenues $ 9374524 $10637,045 $ 10825399 § 6123523 $ 20199923 § 16760568 § 3,439,355 17%
Expenses
General government $ 1167059 § 1,185833 3 = $ = $ 1167059 $ 1,195833 § (28,774) -2%
Public safety/fjudiciary 2,825,331 2,921,260 = - 2,825,331 2,921,260 (95,929) -3%
Transportation 1,006,038 967,077 = = 1,006,038 967,077 38,961 4%
CQultural,parks, recreation 1,610,751 1,698,681 - - 1,610,751 1,698,681 (87,930) -5%
Public services 359,960 431,857 - - 359,960 431,857 (71,907) -17%
Water - - 4,536,212 3,788,487 4,536,212 3,788,487 747,725 20%
Sew er - - 1,389,284 1,243,012 1,389,284 1,243,012 146,272 12%
Sanitation - - 1,344,270 1,336,008 1,344,270 1,336,008 8,262 1%
Airport - = 374,092 420,815 374,092 420,815 (46,723) -11%
Golf = = 556,718 600,239 556,718 600,239 (43,521) -7%
Parks & recreation - - 17,375 52,975 17,375 52,975 (35,600) -67%
Healthcare - - 589,226 646,891 589,226 645,891 (57,665) -9%
Education - - 558,003 582,398 558,003 582,398 (24,395) -4%
Economic development 464,153 459,477 635,709 689,825 1,099,862 1,149,302 (49,440) -4%
Total Expenses $ 7433202 $ 7674195 $ 10000889 § 9360650 $ 17434181 § 17034845 § 399336 2%
Increase (decrease)
in net position $ 1,941,232 § 2962850 $ 824510 §$ (3,237,127) $ 2765742 $ (274277) 3,040,018 -1108%

Governmental Activities

To aid in the understanding of the Statement of Activities some additional explanation is given. Of particular
interest is the format that is significantly different than a typical Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in
Fund Balance. You will notice that expenses are listed in the first column with the revenues from that particular
program reported to the right. The result is a Net (Expense)/Revenue. The reason for this kind of format is to
highlight the relative financial burden of each of the functions of the City’s taxpayers. It also identifies how much
each function draws from the general revenues or if it self-financing through fees and grants or contributions. All
other governmental revenues are reported as general. It is important to note all taxes are classified as general
revenue even if restricted for a specific purpose.
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For the year ended June 30, 2015, the City's governmentzal activities were funded as follows:

2014 Governmental
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Financial Analysis of the City’s Funds
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Governmental Funds

As discussed, governmental funds are reported in the fund statements with a short-term, inflow and outflow of
spendable resource focus. This is useful in assessing resources available at the end of the year in comparison with
up coming financing requirements. Governmental funds reported ending fund balances of $6,521,275. Of this year
end total $2,847,652 is unreserved indicating availability for cantinuing City service requirements. Restricted fund
balances include: $109,792 committed to cemetery capital improvements, $584 for economic development and
31,234,532 for capital projects.

The total ending fund balances of governmental funds showed a decrease of $656,703 (which includes a prior
period restatement of $423,752) over the prior year. This decrease is primarily attributable to the general fund and
4 cent sales fax fund offset by the capital improvement fund.

Mafor Governmental Funds

The General Fund is the City's primary operating fund. The fund balance of the primary operating fund of the City
decreased by $741,609 (which includes a prior period restatement of $423,752) from $3,589,261 to $2,847,652.
Key factors contributing to this decrease included a decrease in sales and use tax.

The Capital Improvement Fund has an ending fund balance of $1,234,532. The fiscal year end included a net
increase of $366,204 in the Capital Improvement Fund. The change in Capital Improvement Fund is largely due to
dedicated sales tax and recognizing the federal share of the Chapman Road project.

The 4" Cent Sales Tax Fund is the fund that accounts for the City’s fourth cent sales tax that is to be used by the
City for Acme Brick Park debt service (40% of .85), police and fire department construction (52% of .95), Acme
Brick Park operation (5%), and economic development (8% of .95).

Proprietary funds

The proprietary fund statements share the same focus as the government-wide statements, reporting both short-
term and long-term information about financial status.

Major Proprietary Funds

The Public Works Authority (PWA) accounts for activities in providing water and wastewater services to the public.
The increase in net position for the PWA Fund was $812,129. This increase is attributable to a net loss before
transfers of $267,088 offset by net transfers in of $1,079,217.

The Solid Waste Authority accounts for activities in providing solid waste services to the public. The increase in net
position for the Solid Waste Authority was $179,113.

The Clinton Airport Authority accounts for providing airport facilities to the public. The increase in net position for
the Airport Authority was $93,560. The net operating loss of $203,369 for the fiscal year was offset by grants and
oil and gas royalties received.

The Recreation Trust Authority accounts for the financing, development, and operation of recreational facilities
which currently includes only the golf course. The decrease in net position of the Recreation Trust Authority was
$81,867.

The Clinton Hospital Authority accounts for the operation and development of the hospital and other medical
activities of the City. The decrease in net position of the Clinton Hospital Authority was $415,498 which is mainly
due to depreciation in the amount of $575,504. The hospital is currently leased to Alliance Health Clinton so the
fund activity will mainly consist of the $125,000 annual lease payment from the hospital, interest income on
investments, and the depreciation on the assets leased to Alliance Health.
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The Industrial Authority accounts for the activities in promoting industrial development within the City of Clinton.
The increase in net position for the Industrial Authority was $235,659. The increase is mainly due to net transfers
from other funds of $725,373 (General Fund and 4t Cent Sales Tax Fund).

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

The General Fund Budget for fiscal year 2015 was $6,112,139. The General Fund budget complied with the
financial policies approved by the City Council and maintained core City services.

Capital Assets and Debt Administration
Capital assets

The City’s investment in capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, for governmental and business-type
activities as of June 30, 2015, was $20,603,944 and $25,732, respectively.

Capital Assets, Net of Accumulated Depreciation

Governmental Activities Business-type Activites Totals $ Change % Change
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
Nen-Depreciable Assets:
Land k3 882381 8§ 1001766 § 2077781 § 1975122 § 3070172 $ 2,976,888 8 §3,284 3%
Canstruction in Progress - B4B 644 3,424,463 582,691 3,424,463 1,441,335 $ 1,983,128 58%
Depreciable Assets:
Buildings 10,588,763 10,564,187 8,065,034 7,957,517 18,653,797 18,521,704 § 132,063 1%
Cther ifprovements 5,660,872 5,578,731 12,664,062 11,747,686 18,324,934 17,326,417 3 998,517 5%
Machinery, furniture & equipment 6,028,667 5,708,219 13,460,335 13,163,700 19,488,002 18,871,918 ] 617,083 3%
Infrasfructure 9,856,706 7,123,851 31,106,664 30,998,422 40,963,370 38,122,273 § 2,841,097 7%
Less accumulated depreciation 12,523,455 11,769,036 45,085,408 43,470,682 57,588,863 55,239,718 5 2349145 4%
Total S5 20,603,944 § 15,056,362 § 257320531 §$ 22964458 § 46,336,875 § 42,020,818 £ 4,318,057 9%

Long-term debt

At year-end, the City had $48,212,420 in debt outstanding. The City's changes in long-term debt by type of debt are

as follows:
FPrimary Government Long-Term Debt
Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2018 2014 2015 2014 20158 2014

Revenue bonds $ - 5 - $43,300,000 $16,545000 $43,300,000 $16,545,000
Nctes payable/capital lease 172,750 - 3,270,035 3,819,695 3,442,785 3,919,695

subtotal ®  4gpyuss T - 48570035 " 20464695 46,742,785 20,464,695

less current portion (30,161) - (1,928,204) (3,348,264) (1,958,455) {3,348,264)
Totals $ 142588 § - $44,641,741 $17,116,431 544784330 $17,116431

The Clinton Public Works Authority issued $12,875,000 of revenue bonds during the 6/30/2012 fiscal year to
finance school improvements approved by voters on March 2, 2010 including classroom additions to Nance,
Southwest and Washington schools, cafeteria addition at Southwest, CHS band room facility, CHS physical
education/practice facility, roofing, parking lots, CMS auditorium remodel and other miscellaneous improvements.
The Authority entered into a ground lease with the Clinton Public School District to lease the land upon which the
improvements were to be constructed. Lease purchase acquisition payments and rental payments derived from the
sublease agreement with the District will be assigned to make the debt service payments on the bonds. Upon
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payment in full of the amounts due under the sublease agreement, possession and ownership of the improvements
will then belong to the District. The Authority has no obligation for the debt beyond the funds derived under the

lease agreement.

The Clinton Public Works Authority issued $28,450,000 of revenue bonds on December 1, 2014 for the purpose of
constructing and acquiring improvements to the City's water system. The bonds are secured by utility revenues
and pledged sales tax.

THE CITY'S FUNDS

The following schedule presents a summary of general fund revenues and expenditures for the fiscal year end June
30, 2015, and the amount and percentage of increases and decreases in relation to the prior year.

FYE2015 FYE 2014 Increase/ Percent
Actual Actual (Decrease) fncrease/
Budget Basis Budget Basis from FYEZ2014 (Becrease)
Revenues

Sales taxes 5 2778318 5 2,872,741 $ {94 422) -3%
Use taxes 513,783 751,554 (237,771} -46%
Holelimotel taxes 362,519 331,360 31,158 8%
E911 taxes 100,020 46,836 3,184 3%
Franchise taxes 382,659 342,533 40,126 10%
Cigarette taxes 65,0916 69,876 {3,860) 6%
Licenses and permils 40,647 50,539 (9,892) -24%
Qil and gas royaliies 287,851 58,204 239,557 B0%
Fines and forfeitures 134,211 138,779 (4,568) -3%
Investment income 24,322 23,543 779 3%
Charges for services 300,877 334,567 (33,590) -11%
Rental income 20,075 20,682 (807) -3%
Intergovernmental 184,602 187,283 (22.681) ~14%
Intracity fees 568,925 532,840 36,285 6%
Miscellaneous 16,945 34,139 (17,184) -101%

Total Revenues 3 5771771 % 5,845,366 5 (73,595) -1%

Expenditures

Governing board & admin b 694,419 § 788,081 $ 73,662 11%
Finance 395,379 381,836 (13,443) -3%
Legal & courts 130,358 134,708 4,348 3%
Police 1,443,333 1,492,991 49,658 3%
Fire B75,551 934,401 58,850 7%
Inspection/code enfarement 121,098 70177 {50,921) ~42%
Street 502,318 489,568 {12,348) -2%
Parks & recreation 1,028,519 1,041,822 12,303 1%
Cemetery 116,537 112,895 (3.542) -3%
Facilities maintenance 243,376 274,767 31,391 13%

Total Expenditures & 5551888 § 5,701,845 3 149,957 3%

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGETS AND RATES

According to the Oklahoma Economic Report, gross receipts for the State began falling during the fiscal year; the
tfrend is expected to continue as the lower market prices for oil and natural gas noted further decline. The state is
bracing for the impact on the economy. it is expected that the sluggish returns will also impact the local economy.
The City's goal is to build reserves and invest in the future. The City has some obligations that it must maintain
with past projects and purchases. The City must continue to make prudent financial management decisions and
continue to progress, reinvest in infrastructure, and continue to plan for the long-term quality of future generations

in Clinton, Serving the public trust requires the best possible balance of allocation to meet the varied needs of all
citizens. The budget provides a framework for us to accomplish our mission, which is 'to create, enhance, and
preserve a human natural and economic environment which fosters our community's unigue quality of life in
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Clinton.” The budget also reflects our core City organization values of integrity, teamwork, service excellence,
personal growth, and innovation.

The following are highlights from the 2015-2016 budget:

The budget reflects that it will be a challenging year considering the statewide slump in the Oklahoma economy and
the water restrictions and the negative effect that both have on the City’s revenue streams. Increasing the City’s
water supply will have a dual effect on the City's financial position: minimizing/eliminating water restrictions will
increase City revenues while decreasing/eliminating the expense associated with the Foss overage. The City has
been evaluating/implementing cross department collaboration which will result in an increase in financial efficiency
while maintaining level of service.

The City budget provides the financial resources necessary to continue the current level of City services, meet the
increasing demand of infrastructure issues, and position the community for continued growth.

CONTACTING THE CITY’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT
This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, and creditors with a general overview

of the City's finances and to show the City’s accountability for the money it receives. If you have questions about this
report or need additional financial information, contact the City Treasurer's Office at City Hall, Clinton, Oklahoma.

Debra Blanchard
City Treasurer
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City of Clinton, Oklahoma
Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2015

Governmental Business-type
ASSETS Activities Activities Total
Current Assets:
Cash, including time deposits 5 744,614 1,008,124 $ 1,752,738
Investments 6,135,000 12,888,835 14,023,838
Interest receivable 6,335 177,763 184,098
Accounts receivable {net) 32,624 674,051 708,675
internal balances 383,901 {383,904} "
Receivable from other governments 538,278 - 538,278
Prepaid expenses 50,545 65,274 115,818
Tolal current assets 1,891,297 14,430,149 22,321,448
Restricted assels:
Cash - 26,681,494 26,681,484
Investmenis - - -
Total restricted assets - 26,681,494 26,681,494
Nancurrent Assets:
Pension asset 1,046,520 " 1,048,920
Notes receivable - 10,580,921 10,580,921
Land and construction in progress 592 391 5,502,244 6,484,635
Other capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation) 189,641,553 20,230,687 39,842,240
Total noncurrent assels 21,650,864 36,313.852 57,964,716
Total asssats 29,542 161 77,425,498 108,967,656
DEFERRED QUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred charges cn pension obligations 469,103 - 468,103
Deferred charge on refunding - 220,605 220,005
469,103 220,005 689,108
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable 21,650 112,584 134,244
Wages and benefits payabie 184,287 39,038 193,325
Accrued interest payable - 18,861 18,881
Compensated absences, current 220,308 65,085 286,294
Due to ather governments 956,687 - 956,687
Netes payable, current 30,181 673,204 703,455
Total current lizbitities 1,383,094 908,772 2,292,866
Liabililies payable from restricted assets;
Accrued interest payable - 287,307 287,307
Bonds payable, current - 1,255,000 1,255,000
Totai Hiabilities payable from restricted assets “ 1,542,307 1,842,307
Noncurrent liabilities:
Penston liabifity 2,186,321 - 2,186,321
Other accrued liabiiities 8,883 - 9,883
Notes payable, non-current 142,589 2,586,741 2,739,330
Bonds payable, non-current - 42,045,000 42,045,000
Unamortized bond discount/premium - 248,440 248,440
Bends payable, net of unamortized discount/premium ~ 42,283,440 42,283,440
Total noncurrent labilities 2,338,793 44,880,181 47,228,974
Tatal ffabliities 3,721,887 47,342,280 51,064,147
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred charges on pension obligations 1,388,130 - 1,389,130
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 20,431,194 15,878,179 36,310,373
Restriced for.
Cemetery cara 168,792 - 109,762
Hospital investment - 8,206,250 5,208,250
Debt chligations " 1,008,960 1,008,860
Unrestricted 4,359,261 5,208,851 9,568,112
Total net position 3 24,900,247 30,303,240 s 55,203,487

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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City of Clinten, Okiahoma
Statement of Activities
June 30, 2015

Program Revenues

Operating Capitat Net
Charges for Grants and Grants & {Expense)!
Functions/Programs Expenses Serviges Contributions Contributions Revenue
Governmental activities:
General government:
Governing board and administration % 768,368 $ 414,330 3 2500 § = 8§ (351,538)
Finance 398,681 227,570 - - (171,121}
Totel general gavernment 1,187,058 641,900 2,500 - (522,659}
Public safety and judiciary;
Legal & courts 128.173 - “ - (128,173}
Paolice 1,837,411 137,458 9 880 1,500 {1,388,575}
Fire 1,038,643 4,453 4 488 143,000 (887,705}
Inspection/code enforcement 120,104 1,250 - - (118,854}
Toial public safety and judiciary 2.825331 143,158 14,3565 144,500 {2,5623,307)
Transporation:
Streels 1,006,038 - 89,528 1,661,022 744,512
Total transporiation 1,006,038 - 89,528 1,661,022 744,512
Cultural, parks and recreation:
Parks & recreation 1,489,691 226,407 - 10,300 {1,252,984)
Cemetery 121,060 60,941 - - (80,119)
Total cultural, parks and recreation 1,610,751 287,345 - 14,300 {1,313,103)
Public services:
Facilities maintenance 355,960 15,738 19,200 17,871 {307,151)
Total public services 358,960 15,738 19,200 17,871 {307,151)
Economic development: 464,153 - {464,163)
Total governmental activities 7.433,282 1,088,145 125,593 1,833,693 {4,385,881)
Business-type activities:
Watar 4,536,212 3,778,833 u - {757.379)
Sewer 1,369,284 1,498,382 - = 109,088
Sanitation 1,344,270 1,478,852 - - 134,582
Airport 374,082 170,725 - 217,75 14,348
Goif 556,718 269,004 - - {287,714)
Parks and recraation 17,375 - - - (17,375)
Heatlthcare 589, 226 125,000 - - {464,2286)
Education 558,003 4,620 182,448 41,775 350,910
Economic developmant 635,708 104,679 5 - (531,030)
Total business-type activities 10,000,889 7,430,165 192,448 526,490 {1,448,786}
Total 3 17,434,181 § 8518310 3 318,041 $ 2,763,183 & {5834,547)
{Continued)

See accompanying notes io financial statements. 15



City of Clinton, Oklahoma
Statement of Activities
June 30, 2015

Changes in Net Position: (Continued)
Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
Net (expense)/revenue $ (4,385,861) 3 (1,448,788) (5,834,847}
General revenues:
Taxes:
Sales tax 5,549,113 . 5,549,113
Use tax 510,224 - 510,224
Hotel/Motel tax 378,262 B 379,252
Property tax (TIF) 116,680 116,690
E-811 fax 100,020 - 100,020
Franchise faxes 386.111 - 386,111
Cigarette tax 66,365 - 686,365
Alccholic beverage tax 58,046 - 56,046
Oil and gas royaliies 287 851 78,5684 376,415
Invesiment income 76,187 153,681 223,868
Penalties - 67,062 67,062
Gain (loss) on disposal of assels (42,280) (1,028) (43,308)
Pension changs 797,702 - 787,702
Miscellanecus 13,760 1,089 14,828
Transfers-internal activity {1,873,948) 1,873,848 -
Total generat ravenues and transfers 6,327,093 2,273,296 8,600,389
Change in net position 1,941,232 824,510 2,765,742
Net positicn-beginning 26,239,897 29,478,730 55,718,627
Restatement {3,280,882) - {3,280,882)
Net positicn-ending g 24,800,247 5 30,302,240 55,203,487
See sccompanying notes to financial statements, 16



City of Clinton, Oklahoma

Balfance Sheet
June 30, 2015

Caphtal 4th Cent industdal Total
General Emprovenent Sales Tax Aathority Cometory Gran{ Governmental
Fund Fund Fund TIF Fund Fund Fund Funds
ASSETS
Cash, including time depasils g 76,267 g 45611 & 575,639 - 2867 10,877 ) 137,068
Investments 3,783,000 1046008 1,225,000 - 84,000 3¢.000 6,135.00C
Interest recoivabla 3,780 875 1.748 - 121 - 6,338
Accounts recelvable - 32624 - - - - Jz624
Dus from othet funds - - 382371 382 958 . “ 765,328
Raceivatie from other governments 324515 160,822 104,141 - " - £38278
Prepaic expansas 49,545 - - - - 1,060 50,545
Total assals 5 4207117 5 3,234,832 5 2,288,800 382 858 106.782 41,877 3 8,113 504
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable k3 49,444 s - $ - - - 2,082 g 21,506
Wages and benafits payable 153,142 - - - - - 153,142
Cempensated absencas, curent 220,209 - - . - - 220309
Dus to other funds - - - 38237 - - 823N
Due to cther governments 956 687 - - - - - 856 BB7
Other accrued liabjlites 9,683 - ~ - - - & 883
Total lablities 1,353,465 - - 382,371 - 2.062 1.743.888
FUND BALANCES
Restrictad for:
Cematery care - . - - 109,762 « 108792
Capital projects - 1,234,632 - v « - 1,234,532
Econemic development - " “ 584 - " 584
Spacial revenue funds - - 2,288 800 - - 39 815 2.328,718
Unassigned 2,847 652 - - - - - 2,847 652
Total fund balances 2,847,652 1,234 532 2,288,800 584 109,792 38,815 6.521,2756
Total liabiities and fund balances $ 4,207,317 $ 1,234,532 3 2288800 382,955 108,792 41,877 S 8,113 504
Total fund balance - total govemmental funds 6,821,275
Amounts reponted for governmental activitas in the statemient of nat assats are different becausea:
Land ang capital assets, net of accumidaled depreciation are not financial resources and, therofare,
ara not reported In tha funds.
Land and construction in process 952,291
Capital assats 42,135 007
Less: Accumulated capreciation (12.523,454) 20,603,844
Long-tenn liahiiies are not due and payable in the current pericd ard are not repartad in the funds. {172,750;
Neat pension asset 1,046 820
Pension relatad defarred cutliows 489,183
MNet pensian fability (2.186,321)
Pansion related defarred inflows {1,389,130)
Intarnal sarvice funds are used by management to charge the costs of eerlain activities such as the
centrat garage 1o the individua funds, Assots and liabilities of tha inlemal service funds are raciassified
to the governmental aclivities In the stiatement of net sssets. internal activity is reclassified o govemmantal
and business-typa activities based on the function of the activilies chargad.
Internat service funds net position 9,362
Business-lype activitias intemal liabilities to government fund activilies (2,166)

Net assets of governmental activitias

Sea accompanying notes to financial statements.
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City of Clinton, Oklahoma
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes In Fund Balances
June 30, 2045

Vi

Salas tax
Use tax
Haotet/motel {ax
Property taxes {TiF)
E911 1ax
Franchisa laxas
Cigarstte tax
Licenses and parmils
Ji and gas royaltios
Fines and forfoitures
Invastmant income
LCharges far services
Rental incomg
intergavernmerital
Intracity faes
Miscallanaous

Total revenues

=

Curent:

General government:
Governing board and administration
Finance

Tota! general govemnment

Pubic safety end judiciary:
Legal and courts
Police
Fire
Inspection/coda enforcement

Total public safety and judiciary

Transpariation:

Streat
Total transperation

LCultural, parks and recreation:
Parks & recreation
Cemetery

Total cuftural, parks snd recreation
Public Sarvicas:
Faciities maintenance
Total public services

Econemic davelopment:

Capitat outiay

Dabt service:

Principle

intarest
Total debt servica
Total expenditures

Excess {deficiancy) of ravenuas ovar

axpenditures
'THER FL CEN Cl
Transtars in
Transters out
Capital lease proceads
Total othar financing sources and usas

Mot change in fund balancas

Fund balances - beginning
Rastatement

Fund balancgs - ending

Capital 4th Cent Industrial Total
General Improve:nent Sales Tax Authority Cemetery Grant Governmental
Fund Fund Fund TIF Fund Fund Fund Funds
§ 2739510 $ 1336346 3 1268525 8 203,728 5 - § - % 5549113
510,224 - - - - - 510,224
284 882 » - 124 570 - “ 379,252
% 4 . 116,680 - . 116,680
100,020 - - - ~ - 100,020
386,111 - B - - - 388,111
66,365 . . “ - B £6,365
40,647 ¥ b ¢ - - 40,847
287,851 - - - - - 287,851
134,211 - - - - “ 134211
23,388 2072 27114 16,814 5a2 107 70,187
00677 - - - 5121 - 306,098
20075 - “ “ - 15738 35813
164,774 1.768.387 “ . . . 1,933,161
568,825 - - . g - 588,925
16,858 81,423 - - - - 28,382
5,824,728 3.188.238 1,296 643 461,902 5703 15845 10,653 050
697,843 18 84 E “ “ 628,042
395914 489 x - - . 366371
1,093 857 474 84 - - - 1,084,415
127420 - - - - - 127420
1442812 15,898 - - - - 1,458,710
878620 - B - - - 878,820
120017 - - - - - 120047
2,568 869 15,698 - ~ - < 2.584 767
£00.050 297,516 - & - - 787.568
500.850 297 516 - - - ~ TO7 568
1,028,684 4,928 1.030612
117,807 - B - 60 - 117.867
1,143,551 4,928 - - 53] - 1,148,578
234,915 - - = - 4,373 239288
204918 - " - - 4,373 239288
- - - 445388 - - 445 388
8,909 2.686.926 - = - ~ 2.696.038
- - ~ 18,765 - - 18.765
- - u 18,765 - - 18,765
5551181 3.004.842 84 434,153 50 4,373 9.024.803
73828 183.286 1,296,559 {2.251) 5,643 11,472 1.568.247
2,882,730 1.528.828 801,540 - - - 5214098
{3,274,125) {1,618,660) {2,394,281) - - - {7.18B.046)
. 172,750 - - . “ 172.750
{381,385) 182.918 {1,692,721} = - - {1,601.168)
{317,857) 366,204 {256,162) 12.251) 8,643 1,472 (232 951}
3,588,261 868,328 2,585,062 2,835 104,149 28,343 TATT 878
(423 752) - - N - - (423,752)
B E U N W I < L i TR =3 e 5B F L RS T BB /5
(Continued}

Sea accompanying notes to inancial statements, 18



City of Clinton, Oklahoma
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
June 30, 2015

{Continued)
Reconciliation of the change in fund balances - total governmenta! funds
to the change in net assets of governmental activities:

“

Net change in fisnd balances - tota! governmental funds (232,651)
Governmental funds report capital cutlays as expenditures. However, in the
statement of activities, the cost of those assets is aliocated over thelr estimated
useful lives and reported as depreciation expense.
Capital asset purchases capiatized 2,696,035
Depreciation expense (1,105,681) 1,580,354

Government-Wide Statement of Activities report the cost of pension benefits sarned
net of employee contributions is reported as an element of pension expense. The
fund financial statements repon pension contributions as expanditures. 787,702

In the statement of activities, the less on the disposal of asses!s is reported, whereas in the
govenmenial funds, the proceeds from the sale increase financial resource. The changa in net -
assets differs from the change in fund balance by the cost of the assets disposed, net of
relaled accumulated depreciation
Loss on disposal of assets- government wide (42,280)

The preceeds of debt issuances provide current finanical resources o govenmentat funds,
but issuing debt increases long-term liabilities in the statement of net assets. Repayment
of debt principle is an expendiure in the governmentat funds, but the repayment reduces
long-term liabifites in the staterment of net assets, See Note 3(E) for additional detall,
Debt activity reported in the fund statements
Long-term capital lease obligation (172,750)
Debt and capita! iease principle -
Interest on debt 18,765
Debt activity recognized in the statement of activities
Interest on fong-term debt (18,785) {172,750)

Internal service funds are used by managemant to charge the costs of internal activities
Internal service fund changes in net position 2,671
Business-type activities net activities due to governmental type activities {1,514) 1,157

Change in Net Assets of Governmenta Activities 5 1,941,232

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 19



Clty of Clinten, Oklahoma
Statement of Fund Net Position
June 39, 2015

ABSETS
Cument asaals:
Cash, intluding time deposits
Ipvesiment
Interest racelyabla
Accounts receivable {net}
Due from other funds
tepaid expenses
Tolal turtent assels

Restricted assets:
Cash, including tima deposlis
investmants
Total sastriclad assels
Nancument assets:
Capltal iease receivatle
Capital assets {net)
Total noncurcent assets

Totul assals

LIABILITIES
Lurent liabiities:
Asounts payable
Wagas and benefits payvable
Due to othar funds
Acctued interast payabla
Compensaled absences, curent
Notes payable, current
Total current fabiities
abilities payable from restilcled assets:
Accrued interest payable
Honds payable, current
Total fiabillties payable from restricted assats
Nonzurant liakilities:
Cther accrued Habilties
Naotes payable, non-current
Bonds payabls, noncurrant
L red hond b
Deferred amount on refunding
Bonds payable, net of unamenized discount/premium
and deferrod amount on refunding
‘Tolal noncurent liabilities

Total lIsbilittes
NET POSITION

Nel investment In capitat assets
Restricted for hospital invesiment
Restricted for debt obligaticns
Unmestiricted

Total net pasition

Adjustment 1o refiect the consolldation of applicable intemal service fund activitles to enterprise funds

Net assets of business-type activitles

Ses accompanying nates 1o fi fal staterments.

Public Solld CHnton Recreatlon Total intemal
Warks Waste Alrport Trisst Indystrial Enterprise Servics
Autharity Autherlty Authority Atthority Authority Funds Fund
76.846 £6,759 12,281 40,354 203,806 1,008,124 7,540
1,407,000 106 000 215,000 B 980.060 12,888 638 -
174,573 848 161 - 1428 177.763 -
532.887 138111 3,762 - 1181 G74.051 .
3 = 5 . 19.688 18888 -
35,635 6443 8.14p 4,825 10,222 65,274 -
2.827.041 936,161 239,333 45179 1.216.428 14,833,738 7.545
2B,80¢.454 - - * - 6.581.4584 B
26.68%.404 " - - - 26.881.454 -
10,255,000 - “ « 125921 10,580,821 -
14,340,824 580.812 2.724.130 1617348 3725208 25732.051 3,102
24.505.824 SE0.A12 2.724130 1,647,348 4.051.227 36,313,852 3,102
£3.904,359 1,496,973 2,563,463 1662527 8267 662 77.829.084 10.651
81,475 57,784 802 1610 793 132,684 144
41,206 13,732 - 11,928 217 39,038 1,145
16.688 - - - 382,955 402,642 -
% - “ - 18881 18.851 .
17,97 23.872 ] AR 3135 £65.985 N
44,440 - . 22433 605,621 873,204 -
144,580 95,482 902 56,888 1,014,525 13112415 1.289
287,307 - . . . 287,307 -
1,265 000 - - = = 1.255.000 -
1,542,207 ~ . - - 1,542,367 -
167,688 - . 69,775 2,358,278 2,506,741 .
42,045,000 - - E - 42,045,000 .
248,440 . - . - 248,440 .
£220.005) + - - = (220,005} "
42,073,435 « - . . 420731435 -
42.241,123 - . B9.775 2.358,776 44,670,178 -
43,528.010 54,488 802 126,664 A3TIEN4 47.524.858 1,289
5,938,358 580,612 2724430 1.525.340 1,266 028 15,875,175 3,102
- - . . . 8,208,250 -
$.008,560 - - - . 1,008, 550 5
2,028.001 B40.673 238,431 10,623 527230 52049797 G260
8,978,349 1.401.485 2,962,561 1,535,663 1,893,358 30,304,186 9,362
(545)
30,203,240
20



City of Clinton, Oklahoma
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
June 30, 2015

Operating rovenuas;
Charges for seryices;
Waler charges
Sewer charges
Sanitation chargas
Pensities
Golf fees
Parks snd recreation
Swimming fees
Concasslong/merchandise sales
Intemal service charges
Total chames for services
Leaze and rental income
Miscelianesus
Total operating revenues

Cost of goods sold
Personal services
Materials and supplies
Other services and chirges
Bad debl expense
Depreciation

Total vparating expenses

Nel operating incoma

Nonpperath venue

Investmant income

Gain (loss) on disposal of fixed assels

Acquisition payments- Chinlon Public Schaols

Grants and centributions.

Bend issue costs

interest expensa

Fiscul eharges

Amortization

Ol and gas royaliies
Total nonoperating revanue
{expense)

Net income before contributions and transfers

Transfers from cther funds
Transfers 10 other funds

Change In net position
Net position-beginning of year

Net pasitioneend of year

Adjustment o reflect the consolidation of spplicable
internal service fund activities to enterprise funds

Lhange in net positien of business-type activities

Sap panying netes to tat stalaments,

Publle Solid Clinton Recreatien Clnton Total Enternal
Works Waste Ajrport Frust Hospital industrial Enterprise Service
Authority Authority Authority Authaority Autheority Autharity Funds Fund
3,708,816 H N b3 . 5 B 3 - 1 - § 3708916 H -
1,494,032 . . - - - 1,484,032 .
- 1,440,272 . v . - 1,440,272 -
&7.062 . - - - - 67,082 ]
- - - 268,708 - . 268,709 -
. . 106,620 . . 2,252 108,872 .
- - - . - - . 36,346
5.268.010 1,440,272 108,620 268,109 B 2,252 7,085,863 35,248
34,181 - 82,880 . 125,000 102,198 324,359 v
240,294 18,580 1,125 285 - 2398 280,523 18,702
5.542.485 1,478.852 170,725 268.004 125 006 104,679 7690748 76,048
1,678 449 - . . F - 1,678,449 -
327,505 390 545 - 284,545 . 60374 1,082,870 33,285
226307 88,010 68,045 13,648 - 1728 413,738 35,748
1,508,514 803 563 127,306 123,020 43,722 353,418 3,028,541 3.852
13,200 2663 - . - . 16,883 .
549,044 50.460 178,740 131,817 578,504 75,783 1,661,387 462
4.483,020 1,345,280 374,094 551,030 5BG 228 587,309 7.861,028 73,377
1.049,465 133602 (203,369) (284,026) (454,226) (402,630) (171,184) 2871
13.882 5511 650 66 126,082 7.480 153,681 .
4 . < {1,028) - ) (1,028) ¥
711,775 - - - . " 1,778 -
- - 2rNs - - - 278 #
(697.229) . d = 3 . (697,228 .
{£.171.534) . - {3,681} - (94,574) (1.269,799) -
(22,6489) ; . . - - (22,649 .
{150,788} - - - . “ {150,798) -
. . 78,5684 - - - 78,564 -
(1,316,553} 5511 286,929 {4,653} 126.082 (87,084) (978,768 -
(287,088) 139,313 93 560 (28B.679) (338,144} {488.714) (1,150,852} 2571
5.787.551 40,000 - 206,712 v 872,219 7,006,482 -
14,708,234} - . - (17,354} (246.8486) (5.032.534) .
812,129 176,113 93,560 {81,967} (415,498) 234,659 822,936 2871
2,164,220 1222372 2.869,001 1.847.830 12,949 568 1,658,189 6,601
8.976.340 5 1401485 § 2962861 § 1,535,863 § 12,534,070 $ 1693858 $ 9,382
1514
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Clty of Cliaten, Oklahema
Statement of Cash Flows

June 30, 2015
Public Selid Clinton Recreatlon Cllnton Total Internal
Werks Waste Alrpert Trust Hospital tndustrial Enterprise Service
Authority Authority Autharity Authsority Authority Authority Eunds Fund
2] 1] ;
Recaipts from cuslomers $ 5242 307 5 1433440 & 168,248 b 2EB 709 § 125,000 $ 105354 § 7344058 § 38346
Payments {o suppiers {3.6825,762} (904,319} [198.231) {137,326} (13.722) (373,493) (5250,853) (39.726)
Paymenis to employees (328451} (389.558) - (278,582) - {60,126} {1.056,167) (33,2113
Gther operating ravenues 240.294 30.580 1,125 285 - 229 2B80.523 36,702
Net cash provided {used) by operating actlvities 1,528 388 378,103 {25.H58) (1458.914) 111.278 (328 036) 3316981 3111
H 0 C clkv: 3
Receipts under interfund foan agreements . - « - 431,274 431274 -
Payments under intatfund loan agreemonts (4,375} “ - . - {426,500} (431.275%) -
Transfers from cther funds 5,787,651 40,000 - 208,712 - 872,219 7.008,482 "
Transfors {o othar funds (4,708,334} - - - {77,354} (142,134} {4,927.822) -
Payments received on capital laase - - - - - - - -
Acqguisition payments- Clinten Pubiiz Schools 1,775 . - . - . 11775 “
Net cash provided {usad) by non-capital
financing activities 1.788617 45,000 - 206,712 {77,354} 834 459 2780434 -
Ca aws eaplt 3 anek Hles;
Purchases of capital assets (3,793 628} {310,377} {285,207) {44,834 - {81,438) (4.535.582) -
Principat paid on capital debt (1268257} - - {18,080} . (587.313) (1,874,680} -
Froceeds from debt issuanca 28,738,056 - - B - - 28,739,086 -
Proceeds receiverd on grants - - 237715 - « - 297715 -
Bond issun costs paid (€97,229; - B - “ - {697,229) =
Interast and fiscal charges paid on capital debi (1144177 - - {3.681} - {88,439} {1,246,307) -
Net cash provided {used} by capital and
redated financing astivities 22.833.805 (318,377} (77.492) (66,713} - {777.190} 21.602.033 -
sh flo 0 egti cil
Sala (purchase) of Investments {571,000} {255 000; (180,000} - {701.338) (283,000} (1,880 338) -
tavestment income 28220 5242 83 66 125337 7753 168,371 -
Receipts from oif & gas royaities - - 78,584 - - « 78564 -
Net cash provided {used} by Investing actlvitles {541 .7B0) (249 TER} (100.683) 66 {576,001) {275 247} (1,743 403) -
Net Increase {dacrease) in cash and cash equivalents 25 607,020 {342,032} {204,033) {6 Bag; {542.077) (546,014} 23,986,025 3111
Cash and cash equivatants, July 1, 2014 $151.310 428,781 216,294 47,203 1,136,075 7489.820 3,723,583 4438
Cash & cash equivalents, June 30, 2018 $ 28.758.340 $  B67bED 3 12.261 5 40.254 5 687,988 § 2030806 3 27689618 & 7,548
e ST
Cash, including time daepasits § 76,848 $ BB,758 $ 12,261 5 40,354 & 567,988 § 203,808 § 1,008124 5 7.549
Rastricted cash, incluging tima deposits 26,661 484 - - - - - 26,681,494 -
Total casht and cash squivalents, end of year 5 28 758.340 5 B6 759 g 12,263 5 40,254 $ 687998 §$ 203806 $ 27689618 s 7,548
St s
Recenclliation of aperating income {l0s8) to net cash
provided (used) by operating activities
Operating incoma (loss) $ 1043485 § 133802 3 {208368) & (2B4028) 5 (484,226} 5 (4026300 § (171188 0§ 287
Adjustments 1o racontia operating income {loss} to
nat cash pravided (Used) by operating activities:
Depraciation 640,044 £0,469 178.740 121.817 575.504 75,793 1.6681,367 492
Changas in assats and Habifties:
(Increase) decrease in ascounts receivable (59.884) {6,832} (352) - - B04 (68,164} -
{increase) decrease in prepaids {1.662} {168} (887) 07 - {233) {2,644} -
increase (decreass) in accounts payable (107 630 86 10 (8E5) - {2,118) {110,617} {126}
Increase {dacrease) in wages & henafits payable 441 1,216 - 1,380 - 273 3310 74
increase {gecraase) in compensated absences {1.386) (269} - 4,573 - (25) 2,893 -
Increase {dacraasa) in other arcrued iabilites - - - * - - - -
Total adjustmants 478,923 44,501 177.51¢ 137,112 875,504 74,554 1,488 145 440
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities $ 1578388 5 178,103 g (25.858! $ (146914) 5 111,278 $ (3280360 5 1316061 5 3111
Non-cash Investing, capltal, and finzncing activities:
Net increase {tacrease) in fair value of investments ] - $ “ s - g - 5 (8.238; § - ] (6236} § -
Todal nen-cash Investing, capltal, and
financing activities $ - $ - $ - - - $ 8238 % - s 823 $ =
Seu acsompanying notes 1o francial statements 22



City of Clinton, Oklahoma
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position
June 30, 2015

ASSETS
Cash, including time deposits
Investments
Total assets

LIABILITIES
Bue to depositors
Total liabilities

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 23

Agency
Fund

5 2,577
252,000

5254577

254,577

§ 54577



CITY OF CLINTON, OKLAHOMA
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2015

NOTE 1:
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CITY OF CLINTON, OKLAHOMA
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2015

NOTE 1:
(A)

(8)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

Introduction:
The accounting and reporting framework and the maore significant accounting principles and practices of the City of Clinton (City) are discussed In

subsequent sections of this nate. The remainder of the notes is organized to provide explanations, including required disclosures, of the City's financia!
activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015.

Financial Reporting Entity:

The City of Clinton is a Council-Manager charter city in which citizens elect the mayor &t large and four council members by wards. The accompanying
financial statements present the City's primary government and component units over which the City exercises signiticant influence. Significant
influence or accountability is based primarily on operalicnal or financial relationships with the City (as distinct from legal relationships).

Due to restrictions of the state constitution relating to the issuance of municipal debt, the City created public trusts pursuant to Title 80 of Qklahoma
State Law to finance Cily services with revenue bonds or other non-general obligation financing, and provide for muiti-year contracting. Financing
services provided by these public trusts are solely for the benafit of tha City. Public frusts created to provide financing services are blended inte the
City's primary government although retaining separate legal identity. Component units that do not meet the criteria for blending are repored
discretely.

Blended Component Units Reported with Primary Government

Component Unit

Brief Description/inclusion Criteria

Reporting Fund Type

Ciinton Public Works
Authority (CPWA)

Clinton Solid Waste
Authorty (CSWA)

Clinton Airport
Authority {CAA)

Clinton Recreational
Authority {(CRA)

Clinton Industrial
Autharity (CIA)

Clinten Hospital
Authority (CHA)

Created November 15, 1877 to finance, develop and
operate the water, sewer and solid waste activities. The
current City Council serves as enfire governing body
(Trustees). Any issuances of debt would require a two-
thirds approval of the City Council.

Created September 4, 1897 to finance, develop and
operate the solid waste activities of the City. The gurrent
City Council serves as entire governing body (Trustees).
Any issuances of debt would require & two-thirds approval
of the City Council.

Created March 2, 1971 to originally provide airport hanger
facilites. The cumrent City Council serves as entire
goveming body (Trustees). Any issuances of debt would
require a two-thirds approval of the City Council.

Created December 2C, 1990 to finance, develop and
cperale recreational, athletic, sports, amusement,
entertainment, cultural and educational services and
facilities. The current City Council serves as entire
govemning body (Trustees), Any issuances of debt would
require a two-thirds approval of the City Council,

Created September 20, 1896 to promote industrial
development. The current City Council serves as enfire
governing body (Trustees). Any issuances of debt would
require a two-thirds apgrovat of the City Council.

Created May 31, 1872 to finance, develop and operate
tha hospital and other medical aclivities of the City. The
current City Council serves as entire governing bhody
(Trustees). The hospitai was leased {o Integris {now
Alliance Health) on January 1, 1998. This lease is for &
20-y=ar peticd, Before the leasing of the hospital, it was
an excluded component unit.

Enterprise Fund

Enterprise Fund

Enterprise Fund

Enterprise Fund

Eniarprise Fund

Enterprise Fund



CITY OF CLINTON, OKLAHOMA
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2015

{C)

Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements:

Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial staternents inciude the statement of net assets and statement of activities. These sialements report financial information

forthe City as a whole. The primary government and component units are presented separately within the financiat statements with the focus on the
primary government. Individual funds are not displayed but the statements distinguish governmental activities, generally supporied by taxes and City
general revenues, from business-type activities, generally financed in whole or in part with fees charged to external customers.

The statement of activities reports the expenses of a given function offset by program revenues directly connected with the functional pragram. A
function is an assembiy of similar activities and may include portiens of a fund or summarize more than ane fund to capture the expenses and program
revenues associated with a distinct functional activity. Program revenues include: (1) charges for services with usage fees, fines and forfeitures, and
other charges 1o users of the City's services; {2) operating grants and contributions which finance arnual operating activities; and (3) capitat grants and
contributions which fund the acquisition, construction, or rehabilitation of capital assels, Taxes and other revenues sources not properly included with
program revenues are reported as general revenues,

Fund Financial Statements!

Fund financial statements of the reporting entity are organized into funds each of which is considered to be separate accounting entilies. Each fund is
accounted for by providing a separate set of self-bafancing accounts which constifute its assets, Habiliies, fund eguity, revenues, and
expenditures/expenses. Funds are organized into three major categories: governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary,

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

The financial statements of the City are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepied in the United States of America, GAAP. The
City's reporiing entity appiies ail refevant Governmental Accounting Standards Beard (GASB) pronouncements and applicable Financial Accounting
Standards Board (FASB) pronauncements and Accounting Principles Board (AFB) opinions issued on er befora November 30, 1988, unless thay conflict
with GASB pronouncements.

The govemnmeant-wide statements report using the economic resources measurements focus and the accrual basis of accounting generally including the
reclassification or elimination of internal activity {betwean or within funds). However, intemal eliminations do not include utility and repair services provided
to City depantments, Reimbursements are reported as reductions to expenses. Proprietary and fiduciary fund financial statements and financial statements
of the City’s companent units also report using the same focus and basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded
when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash fiows.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using current financial rescurces measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting.
Revenues are recognized when they are poth measurable and available. Measurable means knowing or being able to reasonably estimate the amaount,
Available means collectible within the current period or soon encugh thereafter to pay current liabilitiss. The Cily considered revenues to be avallable if they
are collected within 60 days of the end of the fiscal year. Expenses are recorded when the refated fund liability is incurred.

Major revenue sources susceptible to accrual include: sales and use taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and investment income. In general, other revenues
are recognized when cash Is received.

Operating income reported in the proprietary fund financial siatements includes revenues and expenses related to the primary, continuing operations of the
fund. Principal operating revenues for proprietary funds are charges to customers for sales or services, Pringipal aperaling expenses are the costs of
provided goods or services and include administrative expenses and depreciation of capitat assets. Cther revenues and expenses are classified as non-
operating in the financial staterments.

Restricted Assets

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City's policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as
needed. Restricted assets and liabifities current in nature are reported with current assets and current liabilities in the financial statements.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of inancial slatements in conformity with US GAAP requires management fo make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reporting
amounts and disclosures; accordingly, actual resulis could differ from those estimates.

Date of Management's Review

Subsequent events were evaluated through Decernber 14, 2018, which is the date the financial statements were available to be issued.



CITY OF CLINTON, OKLAHOMA
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2015

o]

Interfund Balances

Generally, outstanding balances between funds reported and due to/due from other funds include outstanding charges by one fund to another for services
or goods or miscellaneous receivables/payables between funds,  Activity between funds that is representative of lending/borrowing arrangements
ouistanding at the end of the fiscal year and are described as due te/due from ather funds.

All activity between governmental and blended business-type activities are eliminated and any residual balances outstanding between the activities are
reported i the government-wide financial statements as internal balances.

Fund Tvpes and Major Funds:
Major Governmental Funds

General Fund
The General Fund is the primary operating fund of the City and Is always classified as a major fund. # is used to account for alf activities except those
legally or administratively required 1o be accounted for in other funds.

Capital Project Fund
The Capital Projects Fund is used to account for sales tax resources restricted {or the acquisition or construction of specific capital projects or items.

Cemetery Care
Accounts for 12.5% of cemetery revenue restricied by State law for cemetery cagpital improvements.

4" Cent Sales Tax
Accounts for tha fourth cent of city sales tax which is restricted for Acrme Brick Park debt service, Acme Brick Park operation, police and fire department
construction, and economic development.

Tax Incremental Financing (TiF)

Accounts for the incremental increase in sales fax, hotel/motel tax, and ad valorem tax recelved within a defined geographic boundaries set by the
counctl as an enterprise zene. TIF is a methad of obtaining financing using future gains in taxes to finance current improvements which wilt create the
conditions for those future gains. When a public project is carried oul, the increase in the value of surrounding real estate, and perhaps new investmen,
generates increased property and sales tax revenues dedicated o finance the debt issued to pay for the project. The City uses TIF to stimuiate
economic development.

Major Proprietary Funds
Fund Brief Description
Clinton Public Works Accounts for the activities of the public trust in providing water and wastewater services
Authority to the pubtic,
Clinton Solid Waste Accounts for the activities of the public trust in providing solid waste services to the public.
Authority
Clinton Airport Accounts for the activities of the public trust in providing airpert facilities to the public.
Authority
Ciinton Recreational Accounts for the activities of the public trust in providing recreational, culiural, and
Authority educational activities and facilities to the public. The Authority presently operates the

municipal golf course facility.

Clinton Industrial Accounts for the activities of the public trust in promoting industrial development within
Authority the limits of the City of Clinton.
Clinton Hospital Accounts for the activities of the public trust in feasing the hospital facility for a 20-year
Authority period beginning January 1, 1998,

Internal Service Fund

Accounis for the financing of goods or services provided by on department to cther depariments within the City on a cost-reimbursement basis. These
include fleet services, risk management, and information technolegy. This propristary fund is reported primarily with governmental activities in the
govemment-wide financial statements,

Agency Funds

Agency funds account for assets held by the City in a rustee or agency capacity. Expendable trust funds account for financial activity in essentially
the same manner as governmental funds. Pension trust funds use the economic resources measurement focus in essentially the same manner as
proprietary funds. Agency funds are custodial in nature and do not involve measurement of results of operations.
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CITY OF CLINTON, OKL.AHOMA
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2015

(E}  Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Qutflows/Inflows of Resources, and Net Position/Fund Balance

Cash and Invesiments

For the purposes of the Statement of Net Assets and Statement of Cash Flows, "cash and cash equivatents” includes ali demand and savings accounis,
and cerificate of deposit or short-term investment with an original maturity of $hree months or fess. In addition, revenue bond trust account investments
in cpen-ended mutual funds are considered “"cash and cash egquivalents®. Cash deposits are reported at carrying amount which reasonably estimates
{air value.

Investments are reported at fair value which is determinad using selscted bases. Short-term invesiments are reported at cost, which approximates fair
value. Securities traded on a nationat or internaticnal exchange are valuad at the fast reported sales price at current exchange rates. Managed funds
refated {o the retirement systems not fisted on an established market are reporied at estimated fair value as determined by the respective fund managers
based on quoted sales prices of the underlying securilies.

Receivables and Uncolleciible Accounis

Significant receivables include sales and use tax receivables and amounts due from custorners primarily for utility services. These receivables are due
within one year. Certaln enterprise funds report accounts receivable net of an allowance for uncollectible accounts and revenues net of uncollectibles,
The aflowance amount is estimated using accounts receivable past due more than 60 to 80 days, depending on the fund.

Prepaids

Prepaids are payments to vendors that benefit future reporling periods and are also reported on the consumption basis.

Capital Assets, Depreciation. and Amortization

The City's property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure with usefu! lives of more than one year are stated at historical cost and reported in the
government-wide financial statements. Proprietary and component unit capital assets are also reported in their respective fund and combining
component units' financial statements. Donaled assels are stated at fair value on the date donaled.

The cost of normal mainienance and repairs that do not add to the asset value or materially extend useful fives are not capitalized. Capilal assels,
including those of component units, are depreciated using the siraight-ine method. When capital assets are disposed, the cost and applicable
accumuiated depreciation are removed from the respective accounts, and the resufting gain or loss is recorded in operations.

Costs incurred during the construction of long-lived assets are recorded as construction in progress and are not depreciated unlil placed in service,

- Buildings 25-50 years
- Oiher Improvemenis 2-50 years
- Machingry, Fumniture and Equipmert 5-20 years
- infrastructure 25-50 years

Deferred Cutflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition o assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section {or deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial
statement element, deferred oulflows of resources, represenis a consumption of net position that applies to a future period and so will nof be recognized
as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure} untit then, The government only has iwo items that qualify for reporting in this category. They area
deferred charge on refunding and a deferred charge on net pension obligations for the retirement plans of the City reported in the govemment-wide
statement of net position. A deferred charge on refunding results from the difference in the carrying value of refunded debt and its reacquisition price
and & deferred charge on pension obligations results from the nat difference between projected and actual earning on pension plan investments. These
deferred charge on refunding is deferred and amortized over the shorter of the lite of the refunded or refunding debt.

In addition {o liabilities, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial
statement element, deferred inflows of rescurces, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future pericd and so will not be recognized
as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The City reports deferred charges on net pension obligations for the retirement plans of the City. A
deferred charge on pension obligations resuits from the net difference between projected and actual earnings on pension plan investments.

Long-Term Debt

in the government-wide, proprietary, and component unit financial stataments, outstanding debt is reported as liabilities. Bond issuance costs, bond
discounts or premiums, and the difference between the reacquisition price and the net carrying value of refunded debt are capitalized and amortized
over the terms of the respective bonds using a methed that approximates the effective interest method. The governmenta! fund financial statements
recognize the proceeds of debt and premiums as other financing sources of the current period. Issuance costs are reported as expenditures.



CITY OF CLINTON, OKL.AHOMA
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2015

(F)

Net Position/Fund Balance

Fund Balance
The governmental fund financial statements report reserved fund balance for ameunts not avaitable for appropriation or legally restricted for specified
purposes beyend the restrictons applicable to the fund.

Net Position
Both proprietary fund financial stalements and government-wide financial statements report net position. Amounts invested in capital assets, net of related
debti and legally restricted amounts are separated from unrestricted net position.

Net investment in capital assets:
The amount restricted consists of capital assets including restricted capital assets, netof accumuiated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances
of any bonds, morgages, notes, or other borrowings that are attributable 1o the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets.

Restricled net position:
Amounts reported as restricted consist of net assets with constraints placed on their use either by {1) external groups such as creditors, grantors,
contributors, or iaws and regulations of other governments; or (2) law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation,

tinrestricted net position:
This consists of net position that does not mest the criteria of “restricted” or “net investment in capital assets,”

Governmental Fund Balances

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) has issued Stalement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type
Definitions (GASE 54). This Statement defines the differeni types of fund balances that a governmantal entity must use for financial reporting
purposes.

GASB 54 requires the fund balance amcunits to be properly reperted within one of the fund balance categories fist below:

Nonspendable
Fund balance associated with inventories, prepaids, long-term loans and notes receivable, and property held for resale (unless the proceeds are
restricted, commitied, or assigned),

Restricted
Fund batance category includes amounts that can be spent only for the specific purposes stipulated by constitution, external resource providers, or
through enabling tegislation,

Committed
Fung batance classification inciudes amounts that can be used only for the specilic purposes determined by a formal action of the City
Commission, the City's highest level of decision-making authority,

Assigned
Fung batance classification are intended to be used by the government for spacific purposes but do not meaet the criteria to be classified as
restricted or committed, and

Unassigned
Fund balance is the residual classification for the government's general fund and includes all spendable amounts not contained in the other
classifications

Restaterment

The Oklahoma Tax Commission notified the City in May, 2015 that a taxpayer had erroneously reporied and remitted $423,752 of use tax during the
2011-2012 fiscat year. The Okiahoma Tax Commissicn is gaing to continue to withhold 12 of what is due to the City of Clinton for use tax until the
amount is fully recovered. A restatement in the amount of 8423,752 and a correspending additional amount due to the Oklahoma Tax Commission
are reflected on the financials in the governmental activities in the government wide financial stalements and in the general fund at the fund level.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with US GAAP requiras managemeni to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain
reporting amounts and disclosures; accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Certain reclassifications have been made to prior period balances in order to conform 1o the current period’s presentation.

Revenues. Expenditures and Expenses:

Sales Tax

The City presently levies a four-cent sales iax on taxable sales within the City. The sales tax is collected by the Oklahoma Tax Commission and
remitied fo the GCity in the month following receipt by the Tax Commission. Sales tax collected by the State in June (which represent sales for May)



CITY OF CLINTON, OKLAHOMA
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2015

NOTE 2;

(A)

(8)

and received by the City in July have been accrued and are in¢luded under the caption “Due from other governments”, The sales tax received is
recorded as sales tax revenue within certain funds as follows:

- 2 cents General Fund

- 1 cent Capilat improvermnent Fund

- 1 cent Special Revenue Fund {through August 31, 2019)
in accordance with Revenue Bond indentures, all 4 cents of the sales tax is appropriated and paid to the Public Works Authority, then .95 of the 1 cent
is retained for Acme Debt and a set amount is retained for the water improvement debt and the remainder is transferred back to and used by the
General Fund and Capital Improvement Fund.

Voters approved an additional .95 cent sales tax to begin October 1, 2011 for B years which is commitied to varous capital projects.

Properdy Tax

Under State law, municipalities are limited in their ability to levy a property tax. Such 1ax may only be levied 1o repay principal and interest on general
obligation bonded debt approved by voters and any court-assessed judgments.

The property tax levy, as determined by the City's debt service needs, is submitted ta the County Excise Board for approval. County assessors, elected
officials, determine the taxable value of real estate and personal propery in the County. A State Board of Equalization hears complainis on real estate
values with the power to equalize assessments. Under present State Jaw, the ratio of assessed value to true value cannot exceed 35%.

Property taxes levied by the City are billed and collected by the County Treasuret's Office and remitted to the City in the month {ollcwing collection.
Property faxes are |evied normally in October and are due in equal instaliments on December 31 and March 31. Propertly faxes unpaid for the fiscal
year are attached by an enforceable lien on property in the following October.

Forthe year ended June 30, 2015, the City's net assessed valuation of taxable property was $43,908,834. The City levied no property taxes this year.

Charges for Services

Program revenues reported with governmental activities include charges for services like permits and fees, parks charges, and fines and forfeitures.
Business-type activity charges {or services include ali sperating income of propristary funds.

Grants and Contribsutions

Governmental grants and contributions primarily consist of grants from Federal and state agencies. The nature of the grant determines if it is reported
as operaling or capital program revenues.

Business-type activities grants and contributions include restricted investment income, donations from others, as well as grants from Federal and state
agencies.

Compensated Absences

Full-time, permanent employees are granted vacation benefits in varying amounts to specified maximums depending on tenure with the City. Sick
leave accrues to full-time, permanent employees ta specified maximums. Generaily, after one year of service, empioyees are entitled to all accrued
vacation leave and comp time upon termination. The estimated liabilities include required salary-related payments. Compensated absences are
reporied as accrued in the government-wide, proprietary and fiduciary financial statements.

STEWARDSHIP. COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

Deficit Fund Net Position/Fund Balance:

Deficits resutting from accrual reporting do not constitute viclations of the Oklahoma State Statues. For the year endad June 30, 2015, the City
reporied no individual fund deficits.

Budgetary Information:

Budget Policy and Praclice

The City Manager submits an annual budget to the City Council in accordance with the City Charter and the Oklahoma Municipal Budget Act. The
budget is presented to the City Council for review, and public hearings are held to address priorities and the allocation of resources. |n June, the City
Council adopts the annual fiscal year budgets for City operating funds. Once approved, the City Council may amend the legally adopted budget when
unexpected modifications are required in estimated revenues and appropriations. Public trusts submit budgets and other planning documents to their
respective govarning bodies, Other funds budgeted on a project-length basis are also subjected to the Council review and approval process.
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(©)

(D)

Budget Basis of Accounting

Each fund's appropriated budget is prepared on a delailed line item basis. Revenues are budgeted by source. Expenditures are budgeted by
department and object class as follows: Personal services, other services and charges, supglies, capital outlay, transfers, and debt service. Budget
revisions at this level are subject to final review by the City Council. The fegal level of controf is by department within a fund. Expendituras may not
exceed appropriations at this level. Within these control Jevels, management may {ransfer appropriations without Counci! approval. Revisions to the
budget were made throughout the year.

The budgets for the operating funds and proprietary fund operations are prepared on the cash and expenditures/encurnbrances basis, Revenues are

budgeted in the year receipt is expected; and expenditures are budgeted in the year that the applicable purchase orders are expected ta be issued.
The budget and actual financial statements are reported on these bases. Unencumbered appropriations for annually budgsted funds lapse at fiscat

year-end,

For the ysar ended June 30, 2015, the City complied, in all material respacts, with the applicable budget laws. The City did not over-expend
appropriations at the legal level of control in any object category.

There was 1 General Fund suppiemental appropriation approved by the City Council during fiscal year 2015.

Revenue Restrictions:

The City has various restrictions placed over certain revenue sources from state or focal requirements. The primary restricted revenue sources include:

Revenue Source Legal Restrictions of Use

Sales Tax See Note 1(F}

Gasoline Excise and Commercial Vehicle Tax Street and Alley Purposes

Airport Revenue Airport Cperations and Debt Service

E-911 Revenue E-911 Emergency Services Purposes
Clinton Hospital Authority Lease Trust Funds Only interest on hospital funds may be spent
Gotf Course Revenue Goif Course Operations and Debt Service
Cemetery Bevenue (12.5% Cemetery Cagital Improvements

Lodging Tax Cest of operating and maintaining a community center
Ad-Valorem Tax Debt Service on Bonds and Judgments
Incremental tax on sales, hotel/motel & advalorem Capital improvements in defined area

For the year ended June 30, 2014, the City complied, in all material respects, with these revenue restrictions.

Debt Restrictions and Covenants

Revenue Bond Debt

The various bend indentures relating to the revenue bond issues of the Clinton Public Works Authority contain a number of restrictions or covenants
that are financial related. These include covenants such as a required flow of funds through special accounts, a revenue bond debt service coverage

requirement and required reserve account balances. The foliowing schedule presents a brief summary of the most significant requirements and the
Authorities’ level of compliance thereon as of June 30, 2014,

Requirement Level of Compliance

a. Flow of Funds ~ Bond Reserve Account. Alf required debt service payments were made.
Construction  Account, Gross  Revenue
Account, and Sinking Fund Reserve.

b. Revenue Bond Coverage - Net operating For the year ended June 30, 2015, this requirement was met
revenue must equal 1.25 times average (see computation below).
annuat debi service on the bonds for the Public
Works Authority.
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Revenue Bond Coverage

Gross revenue available for deb! service

Operating revenues for Public Works Authority 5,268,010
FPledged sales tax 4,161,835
Gross revanue avallable for debt service 9,420,845

Cperating expenses for Public Works Authority
Excluding depreciaticn and amertization (3,843,976)
Nzt revenues avallable for debt service 5,585,868

Debt service requirements:

Average annual debt service- OWRB note 42,258
Average annual debt service- Serigs 2012 revenug bonds 1,000,000
Average annual debt service- Series 2014 revenue bends 1,681,485
Total average annual debt service 2,723,753
Cormputed coverage 2.05
1.25

Required coverage

NOTE 3: DETAIL NOTES ON FUNDS, ACCOUNT GROUPS, AND COMPONENT UNITS

(A)

Cash and Investments:

Deposits
The City invests in various investments securifies. Investment securities are exposed 1o various risks such as interest rate risk and credit risk, Due to

the level of risk associated with cerlain investment securities, i is at least reascnably possible that changes in the values of investment securities will
occur in the near term and that such change could materially affect the City's financial position.

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk thaf in the event of a bank faiture, the City's deposits may not be returned or the City will not be able to

recover caollaieral securities in the possession of an cutside party. Deposits of the City's reporting entity are insured or collateralized with securities
held by the Cily, its agent, or by the pledging financial institution’s trust department or agent in the name of the City or applicable public trust.
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(B)

investments

As of June 30, 2015, the City's repariing entity had the fellowing investments:

Average Weighted
Fair Valuel Credit Average
Carrying Quality/ Days to
Iypes of Investments Amount Cost Ratings {1) Maturity (2)
Primary government
POOLED INVESTMENTS:
Certificates of deposit § 10,993,000 & 10,893,000 N/A 483
Total pooled investments 10,993,000 10,993,000
NON-POOLED INVESTMENTS:
Federal agency notes 2,503,142 2,888,907 Aaa -
Mortgage backed securities {3) 669,696 647,476 AAA
Certificates of deposit 4,458,000 4,458,000 N/A 843
Total non-pooled investments 8,030,838 7,994,383
Total primary government investments $ 19,023,838 $ 18,987,383
Reconciliation to Statement of Net Assets
Governmental Business-Type
Activities Aclivities Total
Unrestricted investments 6,135,000 12.888,838 15,023,838
Total 6,135,000 12,888,838 14,023,838
Fiduciary funds
POOLED INVESTMENTS:
Certificates of deposit L 252,000 § 252,000 NA 484
Total fiduciary investments % 252,000 % 252,000
Grand total investments $ 19,275838 3 19,239,383

(% Ratings are provided where applicable to indicate associated Credit Risk. N/A indicates nat applicable.

(2)interest rate risk is estimated using either duration orweighted average days to maturity depending on the respective policy.

(3) These include investments highly sensitive {o interest rate changes.

Generally, the City's investing activities are managed under the custody of the City Treasurer. Investing is performed in accordance with investment
policy adopted by the City Council on January 7, 1897 and by complying with State Statutes and the City Charter.

Accounts Receivable

Governmental activities report sales and use taxes receivable of 538,278 comprised of amount received after year-end for current year taxes on sales.
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()

(2)

Business-type Activites

Solid
Waste

Public
Works

Industrial
Atrport Authority Total

Accounts Receivable
Less: allowance for uncollectible accounts

$ 532,987 & 136,111

£$3,762 § 1,181 $674,051

Net accounts recejvable

$ 532,987 § 135,111

$3762 5 1,191 §674,051

Hestricted Assets:

The amounts reported as restricted asseats on the combined balance sheet are comprised of cash and investments held by the trustee banks on behalf

of the various public trusts authorities related to their required revenue bond accounts.

The restricted assets as of June 30, 2015 were as follows:

Cash and cash

Type of Restricted Assets equivalents Investments Total
Enterprise Funds:
Public Works Authority
Revenue Bond Trustee Accounts:
2010 Bonds $ 351,028 % - 3 351,028
2012 bonds 657,817 1) # 857,917
2014 bonds 25,672,549 - 25,672,549
Grand total enterprise fund 3 26,681,494 S - § 26,681,494
Capital Assets:
Govemmental Activities
A summary of the changes in the governmental activities fixed assets is as follows:
Balance at Balance at
July 1, 2014 Additions Disposals June 30, 2015
Land k3 1,001,766 § s 5 8375 & 992,391
Buildings 10,564,187 79,6578 55,000 10,588,763
Other improvements 5,578,731 82,141 - 5,660,872
Machinery, furniture & equip. 5,708,219 650,108 329,660 6,028,667
Infrastructure 7,123,851 2,732,855 - 9,856,706
Construction in process 848,644 - 848,644 -
30,825,398 3,544,680 1,242,6797 33,127,399
Less accumuiated depreciation 11,769,036 1,166,173 351,754 12,623,455
Net property, plant, & equipment 3 19,056,362 5 20,603,944
Business-Type Activities
A summary of the changes in the business-type activities fixed assets is as folfows:
Balance at Balance at
July 1, 2014 Additions Disposals June 30, 2015
Land $ 1,875,122 § 162,659 § « B 2,077,781
Buildings 7,857,517 167,517 - 8,065,034
Other improvements 11,747,686 916,376 - 12,664,062
Machinery, furniture & equip. 13,183,700 363,791 67,156 13,460,335
Infrastructure 30,998,422 108,242 - 31,106,664
Construction in progress 592,691 3,281,435 449 663 3,424,463
66,435,138 4,880,020 516,819 70,798,339
Less accumulated depreciation 43,470,682 1,661,367 66,641 45,065,408
Net property, plant, & equipment $ 22,964 456 § 25732931
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Fixed assets of the Enterprise Funds were comprised of 1he following at June 30, 2015

Public Solid
Warks Waste Airport Recreation Industrial Haspital
Authority Authority Authority Authority Authority Authority
Land 3 164,305 § B4,601 § 128,733 § 302,000 $ 1,353,336 % 44,807
Buildings 503,011 179,823 514,983 253,752 2,761,932 3,851,582
Other Improvemnents 1,162,652 - 1,064,779 1,507,764 106,885 8,821,982
Machinery, furniture, & eguip. 1,838,837 1,357,181 188,026 525,650 292199 9,218,441
Infrastructure 28,420,273 - 2,467,319 105,163 113,910 -
Construction in progress 3,273,235 - 8,200 - 143,028 -
Less accumulated depreciation 21,021,489 1,100,793 1,647,860 1,076,981 1,045,584 19,172,301

Net property, plant, & equipment 5 14340824 & 560,812 & 2724130 $§ 1617348 & 3725306 § 2,764,511

Depreciation

Bepreciation expense was charged to functions of the primary government as follows:

Governmental Activities Busingss-type Activities
General government: Water $322,495
Governing board & adminisiration 570,779 Sewer 326,549
Finance 2,318 Sanitation 50,462
Fublic safety & judiciary: Airport 178,740
Legal and courts 753 Goif 131,817
Police 78,897 Healthcare 575,504
Fire 161,070 Economic development 75,793
Inspection/code enforcement 94 $1,661,367
Transportation:
Strest 208,773
Cultural, parks and recreation:
Parks & recreation 458,224
Cemetery 3,101
Public services:
Facilities maintenance 120,672
1,105,681

(E} Long-Term Debt:

The City's long-term is segregated between the amounis to be repaid from governmenta! activities and amounts to be repaid from business-type
activities.

Governmental Activilies

As of June 30, 2015, the long-tarm debt payable from gevernmental fund resources consisted of the following:
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CAPITAL LEASE PAYABLE:

Capital lease purchase of street sweeper through the Government Capital
Corperation dated April 7, 2015 for the lease of properly totalling $172,750. Leased
equipment atiributible to governmental-type activities includes 2015 TYMCO Modst
6C0 BAH street sweeper. Annuat paymenis of $31,157 are required under the
lease beginning July 15, 2015. Lease matures May , 2018.

Business-Type Activities

172,750

8 172750

As of June 30, 2015, the long-term debt payable from enterprise fund resources consisted of the following:

CAPITAL LEASE PAYABLE:

Capital iease purchase of gelf carts through the PNC Equipment Finance dated
March 11, 2014 for the lease of properly totaling $113,317. Leased eguipment
attributible to business-type activities includes 80 new golf carts. Monthly
payments of $1,980 are required under the lease beginning June, 2014 with a
bailoon payment of $30,000 due in May, 2018. Lease matures May , 2018.

NOTES PAYABLE

Note Payable with Oklahoma Water Resources Board for w ater system
improvements, issued by the Clinton Public Works Authority, payable in semi-annual
installments to be deterrmined at corrpletion of construction on a 20 year
amartization with an annual inlerest rate of 3.161%.

Note payable for w ater systemimprovements from CDBG loan funds issued by the
Clinton Industrial Authority, payable in monthly insiallments of $365 to the Oklahoma
Department of Commerce, no interest, to begin February 29, 2000.

Note payable to Robinsons for housing development land to be paid as lots sell, no
interest, balance due by January 1, 2017 if lots not all sold.

MNote Payable for fire s{ation construction and equinment issued by the Clinton

Industrial Authority, payable in semi annual payments to the Oklahoma Bank & Trust
w ith an annual interest rate of 2.95%, to begin August 12, 2012.

REVENUE BONDS PAYABLE:

2012 Serigs Clinton Public Works Authority Refunding Hevenue Bonds original issue
armount of $6,000,000, dated November 15, 2012, issued by Clinton Public Works
Authority, secured by utility revenues and pledged sales tax, interest rates from 1.5% to
3.00%, final maturily on January 1, 2019,

2014 Series Clinton Public Works Authority Ulility Systemn and Sales Tax Revenue Bonds
eriginal issue amount of $29,450,000, dated December 1, 2014, issued by Clinton Public
Works Authority, secured by utility revenues and pledged sales tax, interest rates from
2.5% to 4.0%, finat maturity on December 1, 2044,

Conduil Debt Obligations.
2010A Series Clinton Public Works Educational Facilities Lease Fevenue Bonds originat
issue amount of §12,660,000, dated August 1, 2010, secured by pledged lease purchase
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acquisifion payments and rental payments on improved property, interest rates ranging
from 2.256% to 5.45%, final maturity September 1, 2020. Refer to conduit debt further
described below.

Total revenue bonds payable
Add: unamortized premisms

Less: unamortized discounts
Less: unamortized deferred amount on refunding
Net revenue bonds payable

Conduit Debt

43,300,000
282,484

(34,054)
(220,005)
§ 43,328,435

The Clinton Public Works Authority issued $12,875,000 of revenue bonds during the 2012 fiscal year to finance school improvements approved by
voters on March 2, 2010 including classroom additions to Nance, Southwsst and Washington schools, cafeteria addition at Southwest, CHS band
rocm facility, CHS physical education/practice facility, roofing, parking lots, CMS auditorium remadel and other miscellaneous improvements. The
Authority entered into a ground Jease with the Clinton Public School District to lease the land upon which the improvements wera 1o be constructed.

Lease purchase acquisition payments and rental payments derived from the sublease agre

ament with the District will be assigned jo make the debt

service payments on the bonds, Upan payment in full of the amounts due under the sublease agreement (September 1, 2020 according to
Schedule of Lease Purchase Acquisition Payments for Improvements), possession and ownership of the improvements will then belong to the
District. The Authority has no obfigation for the debt beyond the funds derived under the lease agraement.

Changes in Leng-Term Debt

The foliowing is a summary of changes in jong-term debt for the year ended June 30, 2015;

Balance at Amount Amount Balance at Due Within
Type of Debt July 1, 2014 Issued Fatired June 30, 2015 One Year
Governmental Fund Debt:
Capital lzase payable 3 - § 172,750 5 & § 172,750 % 30,181
Total governmental fund debt  § £ $ 172,780 g - $ 172,750 § 30,181
Enterprise Fund Debt:
Capital lease payable 5 110,088 $ . % 18,090 & 52,608 § 22233
Notes payabie 3,809,557 " 631,936 3,177,662 651,061
Revenue bonds payable 4,820,000 29,450,000 1,225,000 33,045,000 1,225,000
Conduit dehit 11,725,000 E E 11,725,G00 -
Total enterprise fund debt 320,464,695 $28,450,000 $1,875,025 $48,039,670 $1,898,204
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Annual Debt Service Bequirements

The anrual debt service requirements te maturily, including principal and interest, for long-term debt as of June 30, 2015 are as follows:

Governmental Activities

Business-Type Activities

Y ear
Ending
June 30 Leases Payable Noies and Leases Payable Revenue Bonds Conduit Debt
Principal Interest Principal Inferest Principal Interest Principat interest
2018 $ 30,160 5 997 % 651,060 $ 80,504 & 1,255,000 % 1,125,598 8 - $ 516,884
2017 27,205 3,952 769,153 62,383 1,270,000 1,097,361 2,380,000 516,884
2018 27,953 3,204 687,781 43,730 530,000 1,081,486 - 415,930
2019 28,721 2,435 706,965 24 529 820,000 1,076,131 2,825,000 415,830
2020 29,611 1,645 362,703 4915 710,000 1,047,181 5,040,000 549,360
2021-2025 29,200 1,957 “ - 3,905,000 4,862,231 - “
2026-2030 - - - - 4,600,000 4,177,250 = “
2031-2035 - - - - 5,415,000 3,317,344 - -
2036-2040 - - - - 6,585,000 2,120,944 - -
2041-2045 - - - - 7,955,000 741,222 = &
Totals § 172,750 5 14,190 $3,177.662 $ 216,061 % 33,045,000 $20,640,748 $10,255,000 $ 2,414,088
{F) Interfund Transactions and Batances:
Interdund receivables and payables at June 20, 2015 were as follows:
DUE TC AND DUE FROM: Due From Due To
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS:
4" Cent Sales Tax Fund:
TIF Fund 3 382,371 &
TIF Fund;
4" Cent Sales Tax Fund - 382,371
industrial Authority 57,035 -
ENTERPRISE FUNDS:
Public Works Authority:
tndustrial Authority - 19,688
Industrial Authority:
TIF Fund - 57,035
Public Weorks Authority 19,688 -
GRAND TOTAL & 459,084 B 455,094
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Operating transfers for the year ended June 30, 2015 were as follows:

OPERATING TBANSFERS:
GENERAL FUND:
Public Works Authaority (an enterprise fund)
Recreation Authority (an enterprise fund)
Industriat Autherity (an enterprise fund)
Total General Fund
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS:
4™ Cent Sales Tax :
Capital Projecis Fund
Public Works Authority (2n enterprise fund)
Industrial Authority (an enterprise fund)
Total Special Revenue Fund
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND:
4" Cent Sales Tax Fund {a special revenue fund)
Pubfic Works Authority
Solid Waste Authority
Clinton Recreation Authority {an enterprise fund)
Industrial Authority (an enterprise fund)
Totat Capital Project Funds
ENTERPRISE FUNDS:
Clinton Public Works Authority:
General Fund
Capital Projects Fund
4" Cent Sales Tax Fund (a special revenus fungd)
Industrial Authority {an enterprise fund)
Clinton Hospital Authority
Clinton Solid Waste Authorsity:
Capital Projects Fund
Clinton Recreation Authority:
General Fund
Capital Projects Fund
Clinton Industrial Authority:
General Fund
Capital Projects Fund
4" Cent Sales Tax Fund (a special revenue fund)
Public Works Authorily (an enterprise fund)
Clinton Hospital Authority:
Public Works Authority (an enterprise fund)
Total Enterprise Funds

GRAND TOTAL

{G)  Fund Egquity:

Falained Eamings Reaserves

Transfers in Transfars Qut

L 2,882,730 5 2,882,730

. 140,000

- 251,395

2,882,730 3,274,125

= 363,630

B01,540 1,316,545

- 714,086

801,540 2,394,261

363,630 =

1,024,064 1,406,210

- 40,000

- 66,712

142,134 6,738

1,520,828 1,519,660

2,882,730 2,882,730

1,406,210 1,024,064

1,316,545 801,540

104,712 o

77,354 2
40,000
140,000
66,712

251,385 .

6,738 142,134

714,686 =

2 104,712

77,354

7,006,482 5,032.534

5 12,220,580 5 12,220,580

The retained earnings of the enterprise funds and internal service funds are reserved for debt retirements and loan disbursements related to the various

revenue bond issues. Reserves at June 30, 2015 are as follows:

Reserved
Reserved Hospital
For Debt Lease
Service Funds Total
Enterprise Funds:

Public Waorks Authority $§ 1,008,960 $ ) $ 1,008,960
Hospital Authority - 8,206,250 8,206,250
Total Enterprise Fund & 1,008,960 $ 8,206,250 $ 9,215,210
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NOTE 4. OTHER NOTES

A. Employee Pension and Other Benefit Plans:

The City participates in four employee pension systems as follows:

Name of Plan/System Type of Plan

Oklahoma Municipal Retirement Fund (OMRF - DBP) Agent Multiple Employer - Defined Benefit Plan
Oklahoma Palice Pension and Retirement Fund Cost Sharing Multiple Employer — Defined Benefit Plan
Cklahoma Firefighters Pension and Retirement Fund Cost Sharing Multiple Employer — Defined Benefit Plan
Oklzhoma Municipal Retirement Fund (OMRF-DCP) Agent Multiple Employer - Defined Contribution Plan

Oklahoma Municipal Retirement Fund - Defined Contribution Plans

The City has provided a defined contributien plan with the Oklahoma Municipal Retirement Fund. The plan is administered by JP Morgan Chase Bank
of Oklahoma City, Oklahoma. Accerding to state law, the authority for establishing or amending the plan's provisions rests with the city council. The
defined contribution plan is avallable to all full-time employees not already participating in another plan. In a defined contribution plan, benefits depend
solely on amounts contributed to the pian, investment earnings, and forfeitures of other participants’ benefits that may be allocated to such pardicipant's
account. Benefits vest after 7 years of service. The City is currently contributing to an elective defined contribution plan. Under the Trust Money
Purchase Pensicn plan, the participants may contribute any parcentage of their compensation and the ¢ity contributes 1.37% of compensation for
participating employees. This percentage can vary from year to year. Participants are permitied to make voiuntary deductible contributions to the plan.

Forthe year ended June 30, 2015, the following amounts related to the defined contribution plan:

City total payroll $7.661,344
Payroll far covered employees $2,305,563
Employer {City) contributions made 564,162

CMQ Plan Description and Funding Policy — The City has also provided a defined contribution plan and trust known as the City of Clinton City
Manager Retirement Plan and Trust (CMO Plan). The plan is administered by JP Morgar Chase Bank of Oklahoma City, Oklahoma. According to
stale law, the authority for establishing or amending the plan's provisions and cantribution requirements rests with the city council. This plan is
available only to the City Manager. The employee cantributes 2% to the plan and the employer makes a 3.0% contribution to the fund. Contributions
{o the plan for the year ended June 30, 2015 were $2,617 on a covered payroll of $88,328.

Oklahoma Municipal Retirement Fund- Defined Benefit Plan

Plan Descripfion

Substantially all of the City's full-time employees, except police and firefighters, participate in a defined benefit pension plan adopled by the City and
administered by the Oklahoma Municipal Relirement System (OMRF), which was established to administer pension plans for municipal empioyees.
OMRF issues a publically available financial report that can be obtained at www.okmdf org.

Bengdits Provided

OMRF provides retirement, disability, and death benefits. Retirement benefits are delermined as 3 percent of the employee's final average
compensation multiplied by the employee's years of service; final average compensation is the average of the § highest consecutive years of salaries
out of the last 10 years of service. Vesting requires 7 years of service, Members are eligible for normal retirement at age 65 with 7 years of vested
service. The banefit is payable immediately. Early retirement is available after age 55 with 7 years of vested service. Early retirement benefils are
paid at the normal retirement age, or reduced 5% per year for commencement prior to the normal retirement age.

Disabifity retirement is provided for member’s total and permanent disability after 7 or more years of service, The accrued benefit is payable upon
disablement without reduction for early payment.

In-service death benefits are payable after vesting at 50% of the accrued benefit until the death of the spouse or remarriage. If the member was not
vested at the time of in-service death, member contributions are returned, if any, with interest.

Contributions

Required contribution rates are actuarially measured each year and authotized through City Ordinance. Employees are required fo contribute 5.25%
of paid salary. Forthe year ended June 30, 2015, the City’s contribution was 10.87%. Contributions to the pension plan from the City were $178,609
for the year ended June 30, 2015.
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Membership
Membership in the plan is as follows:
As of January 1,

2014
Inactive empioyeas & beneficiaries receiving benefits 30
Inactive empfoyees entitled to but not yet receiving benefils 15
Active participants 65
Total 110

Pension Liabilities. Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Besources related to OPPRS

At June 30, 2015, the City reporied an asset of $965,375 for its proportionate share of the netf pension asset. The net pension asset was measured
as of July 1, 2014, and the total pension kabiiity used o calculate the net pensian liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date.
The City's proportion of the net pension asset was based on a projection of the City's long-term share of contribulions to the pension plan relative to
the projected contributions of alt participating municipalities, actuariaily determined.

Changes fo the actuarial valuation between the measurement date of the net pension liability and the City's reporiing dates are not expected to have
a significani eflect on the net pension liability.

For the year ended June 30, 2015, the Cily recognized pension expense of $100,813. At June 30, 2015, the City reporied deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of rescurces related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Quitflows Deferred Inflows

of Resources of Resources
Difference betw een expected and actual experience $ - 8 5
Changes of assurmptions - -
Net difference betw esn projected and actual earnings on
pension plan investments - 734,926
Changses in proportion and differences betw een City
contributions and proportionatle share of contributions - -
City contributions subsequent to the measurement date 260,465 -

Total 5 260,465 $ 734,926

Other amounis reparied deferred inflows of resources related 1o pensions will ba recognized in pension expense as foliows:

Year ended June 30:
2016 $ 183,732

2017 183,732
2018 183,731
2018 183,731

5 734,926

Actuarial assumptlions: The total pension liability in the June 30, 2015 actuariai valuation was determined using the following actuarial assumptions,
appiied 1o all perieds included in the measurement:

Inflation 3 percent

Salary increases 5.07 percent, average

Investment rate of return 7.55 percent, net of pension pian investment expense
and inflation

Mortality rates were based on the UP 1894 with projected mortality improvement. Valuation rates are projected for mortality improvement by the
Society of Actuaries’ table AA based upon the emgioyee’s year of birth,

The actuarial assumgptions used in the July 1, 2014 vaiuation were based on the results of an actuarial experience study for the period ended July 1,
2007 through June 30, 2011.

The long-ierm expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of
expecied future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation} are developed for each major asset
class. These ranges are combined {o produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target
asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation (3.0%). Best astimatas of arithmetic real rales of retumn for each major asset class
included in the pension plan's target asset allocation as of July 1, 2014 are summarized in the following table:
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Large cap stocks - S&F 500

Smali/mid cap stocks - Russell 2500

Long/short equity - MSCE ACWI

International stocks - MSCI EAFE

Fixed income bonds -~ Barclay's Capital Aggregate
Real estate - NCREIF

Cash equivalents - 3 month Treasury

Target Real Weighted
Allocation Return Return

25% 5.40% 1.35%

10% 7.50% 0.75%

10% 6.10% 0.61%

20% 5.10% 1.02%

30% 2.60% 0.78%

5% 4.80% 0.24%

0% 0.00% 0.00%

100%

Average Real Return 4.75%
inflation 3.00%
Leng ferm expected refurn 7.75%

Discount rate: The discount rate used to measure the tofal pension liability was 7.75 percent, as the plan's net fiduciary position is projected to be
sufficient to make projected benefit payments. The City has adopted a funding method that is designed to fund all benefits payable to participates
over the course of the member’s working career. Any diflerences between aciual and expected experience are funded cver a fixed period to ensure
all funds necessary to pay benefits have been contributed to the trust before those benefits are payable. Therefore, no separate cash flow projection
is required to determine the sufficiency of the plan assets. The 20 year tax free bond yisld of 3.29% was used in the analysis.

Changes in the Net Pension Liability

Increase {Decrease)

Total Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Pension
Liability Net Position Liability
(a) (b) {a) - (b)
Balances at June 30, 2013 9,845,602 9,877,199 {31,297)
Changes for the year:
Service cost 318,193 - 318,193
Iinterest 766,152 % 766,152
Differences between expected and actual
experience - - -
Contributions - employer 299 965 {289,965)
Contributions - employee 127,630 {127,630}
Net investment income - 1,614,704 (1,614,704}
Benefit payments, including refunds of
employee contributions {567,102) (567,102) =
Administrative expense - (23,876) 23,876
Other changes # - -
Net changes 517,243 1,451,321 (934,078)
Balances at June 30, 2014 $ 10,363,145 11,328,520 5 {865,375)

Sensitivity of the City's proporiionate share of the net pension liability to changes in the discount rate; The fatlowing

presents the City's proportionate share of the net pension liabilily calculated using the discount rate of 7.75 percent, as well as what the City's
proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point tower (6.75 percent) or
1-percentage-point higher (8.75 percent) than the current rate;
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1% Current 1%
Decrease Discount Rate Increase
{6.75%) {7.75%) (8.75%)
City's proportionate share of the net
pension liability/{asset) 548,011 (965,375) {2,204,545)

Pension plan fiduciary net position: Detailed information about the pension plan's fiduciary net position is avallable in the separately issued OMRF
financial report.

Oklahoma Police Penslon and Retirement System

Plan Dascription

The City of Clinton, as the employer, patticipates in the Oklahoma Police Pension and Retirement System, a statewide, cost-sharing, multiple-employer
defined benefit plan administered by the Oklahoma Police Pension and Retirement Systern (OPPRS). Title 14 of the Oklahoma State Statutes, the the
Oklahoma Legislature, grants the authority to establish and amend the benefit terms to the OPPRS., OPPRS issues a publically avaitable financial
report that can be obtained at www ok qov/OPPRS.

Benefits Provided

OPPRS provides retirement, disability, and death benefits to mambers of the pfan, The normal retirement date under the Plan is the date upon which
the participant compleles 20 years of credited service, regardless of age. Participants become vested upan cemplating 10 years of credited service as
a contributing participant of the Plan. Nao vesting accurs prior to completing 10 years of credited service. Participants’ cantributions are refundable,
without interest, upan termination prior to normal retirement, Participants who have completed 10 years of credited service may elect a vested benefit
in lieu of having their accumulated contributions refunded. If the vested benefit is elected, the participant is entitled to & monthly retirement benefit
commencing on the date the participant reaches 50 years of age or the date the participant would have had 20 years of credited service had employment
continued uninterrupted, whichever is later.

Maonthly retirement benefits are calculated at 2.5% of the final average salary (defined as the average paid base salary of the officar over the highest
30 consecutive months of the last 60 months of credited service) multiplied by the years of credited service, with a maximum of 30 years of credited
service considered. Monthly benefits for participants due to permanent disability incurred in the line of duty are 2.5% of the participants’ final average
salary multiplied by 20 years. This disability benefit is reduced by stated percentages for parial disability based on the percentage of impairment. After
10 years of credited service, participants who retire due to disability incurred from any cause are gligible for a monthly benefit based on 2.a5% of their
final average salary multiplied by the years of service. This disability benefit is also reduced by stated percentages for partial disability based on the
percentage of impairment. Effective July 1, 1898, once a disability benefit is granted to a participant, that participant is no longer aliowed to apply for
an increase in the dollar amount of the benefit al a subsequent date.

Survivar's benefits are payable in full to the participant’s beneficiary upon the death of a retired patticipant. The beneficiary of any active participant
killed in the line of duty is entitled to a pension benefit.

Conteibutions

The State of Oklahoma has the autharity to establish contribution obligations and benefits per state statute 11 O.S. Section 550-101 et seq. Employees
are required to contribute 8% of paid base salary; the City contributes 13% af the employee's paid base salary. Contributions to the pension plan from
the City were 588,084 for the year ended June 30, 2015.

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resaurces and Deferred Inflows of Resources related to OFPPRS

Atuune 30, 2015, the City reparted an asset of 581,545 for its proporticnate share of the net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured
as of June 30, 2014, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liabilty was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date.
The City's proportion of the net pension Hability was based on a prajection of the City's long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to
the projected contributions of all participating municipalities, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2015, the City's propottion was 0.2422 percent.

For the year ended June 30, 2015, the City recognized pension expense of $29,880. At June 30, 2015, the City reporied defersed outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the fallowing sources:
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Deferred Qutflows Deferred Inflows
of Hescurces of Resources

Difference between expected and actual experienge $ - 8 36,638
Changes of assumptions = =
Net difference between projected and actual earmings
on pension plan investments - 286,619
Changes in proportion and differences hetween Gity
contributions and propertionate share of contributions - .
City contributions subsequent 1o the measurement date 80,232 -
Total 5 80,232 3 323,255

OCther amounts reported deferred inflows of resources related {o pensions will be recognized in pension expense as fcliows:

Year ended June 30:
2016 3 79,240

2017 79,240
2018 78,240
2018 78,240
2020 65,285

I

Actuarial assumptions: The total pension liabilily was determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2014, using the following actuarial
assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:

Inflation 3 percent
Salary increases 4.5% to 17% average, including inffation
Invesiment rate of return 7.5% net of pension plan investment expensa, per

annum, ccmpound annually

Mortality rates: Active employees {gre-retirement) RP-2000 Blue Collar
Healthy Combined table with age set back 4 yrs with
full generational improvement using Scale AA.

Active employees (post-retirement) and nondisabled
pansioners: RP-2000 Blue Cdllar Healthy Combined
table with fully generational improvement using scale AA.

Disabled pensioners: RP-2000 Blue Collar Healthy
Combined table with age set forward with fully
generational imprivement using scale AA.

The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2014 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial experience study for the period ended July 1,
2007 through June 39, 2012. There have been no changes to acluarial assumptions since the pricr valuation.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building block method in which besi-estimate ranges of
expecied future real rates of return {expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset
class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term axpected rate of refumn by weighting the expected future reai rates of refumn by the targst
assei allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in
the pension plan's target asset aliocation as of June 30, 2014, are summarized in the following table:

Long-Term Expected

Asset Class Reat Rate of Aslurn
Fixed income 2.83%
Domestic eguity 6.47%
international equity 6.98%
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Real Estate 5.50%
Private Equity 5.96%
Other assets 3.08%

The current allocation policy is that approximately 60% of assets in equity instruments, including public equity, long-short hedge, venture capital, and
privale equity strategies; approximately 25% of assets in fixed income to include investment grade bands, high vield and non-dollar denominated
bends, convertible bonds, and low volatility hedge fund strategies; and 15% of assets in real assets to include real estate, commodities, and other
strategies.

Discount Rafe — The discount rate used to measure the total pension Hability was 7.5%. The projestion of cash fiows used to determine the discount
rate assumed that contributions from plan members wilt be made at the current contribution rate and that cantributions from emplayers will be made
at contractually required rates, determined by State statutes. Projected cash flows also assume the State of Oklahoma will continue contributing 14%
of the insurance premium, as established by statute. Based on these assumptions, the pension plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be
available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan
investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension fiability.

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liahility to Changes in the Discount Rate ~ The following presents the net pensien liability of the employers calculated
using the discount rate of 7.5%, as welf as what the Plan's net pension lability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage
paint lower (6.5%) or 1-parcentage-point higher (8.5%) than the current rate:

1% Current 1%
Decrease Discount Rate Increase
{6.5%) (7.5%) (8.5%)
City's proportionate share of the net
pension Hability/{assei) 485,182 {81,545) (559,170}

Changes in the Net Pension Liability

Increase (Decrease}

Total Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Pension
Liability Net Position Liability
{a) (b) (a) - (b)
Balances at June 30, 2013 5,158,856 4,785,081 373,795
Changes for the year:
Service cost 128,467 - 128,467
Interest 385,719 “ 385,718
Differences between expected and actual
experience (44,221} - (44,221}
Contributions - employer - 86,095 (86,085)
Contributions -« employee - 53,801 (53,801)
Contributions - State of Okiahoma {non-
employer} 75,879 (75,879)
Net investment income - 714,240 {714,240}
Benefit payments, including refunds of
employee contributions (288,802} (2B88,802) -
Adrinistrative expense - (4.510) 4,510
Other changes - - -
Net changes 181,163 636,503 {455,340)
Balances at June 30, 2014 3 5,340,019 3 5,421,564 3 (81,545)

Pension plan fiduciaty net position. Detailed information aboul the pensien pfan's fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued OPPRS
financial report which can be located at www.ok.aow/QPPRS.
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Qklahoma Firefighters Pension and Retirement System

Plan Description

The City of Clinton, as the employer, participates in the Firefighters Pension & Retirement- a statewide, cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit
plan administered by the Oklahoma Firefighters Pension and Retirement System (FPRS). FPRS issues a publically available financial report that can
he obtained at www ok .gov/FPRS,

Benefits Provided
FPRS provides retirement, disability and death benefits to members of the plan.

Benefits for members hired prior to November 1, 2013 are determined as 2.5 percent of the employee's final average compensation times the
employee’s years of service and have reached the age of 50 or have completed 20 years of service, whichever is later. For volunteer firefighters, the
manthly pension benefit for nermal retirement is $150.60 per menth. Benefits vest with 10 years or more service.

Benefits for members hired after November 1, 2013 are determined as 2.5 percent of the employee's final average compensation times the employee's
years of service and have reached the age of 50 or have completed 22 years of service, whichever is later. For volunteer firefighters, the monthly
pension benefit for normal retirement is $165.66 per month, Benefits vest with 11 years or more service.

All firefighters are eligible for immediate disability benefits. For paid firefighters, the disability in-the-line-of-duty benefit for firefighters with less than 20
years of service is equal to 50% of final average monthly compensation, based on the most recent 30 months of service. For firefighters with over 20
years of service, a disabiiity in-the-line-of-duty Is catcutated based on 2.5% of final average monthly compensation, based on the most recent 30 months,
per years of service, with a maximurn of 30 years of service. For disabilities not-in-the-lne-of-duty, the benefit is fimited to only those with less than 20
years of service and is 50% of final average monthly compensation, based on the most recent 60-manth salary as opposed to 30 months, For volunteer
firefighters, the not-in-the-line-of-duty disability is also mited {o only those with less than 20 years of service and is $7.53 per year of service, For
volunteer firefighters, the inthe-line-of-duty pension is $150.60 with less than 20 years of service, or $7.53 per year of service, with a maximum of 30
years.

A §5,000 lump sum death benefit is payable to the qualified spouse or designated recipient upon the participant’s death. The $5,000 death benefit
does not apply to members electing the vested benefit.

Contributions
The State of Cklahoma has the authority to establish contribution obligations per state statute 11 0.5, Section 49.100 thru 48.143 et seq and are not
based on actuarial caleulations. Volunteer members have no contribution requirements; the City conlributes 360 per year for each volunteer.

Employees are required to contribute 9% of their annuat pay. Participaling cities are required {o contribute 14% of the employees' annual pay.
Contributions {o the pension plan from the City were $78,461.

Pension Liabilittes, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources related to OPPRS

At June 30, 2015, the City reported a Hiability of $2,186,321 for its proportionale share of the net pension lability. The net pension net pension Hability
was measured as of June 30, 2014, and the total pension liability used {o calculate the net pensicn liability was determined by an actuarial valuation
as of that date. The City's proportion of the net pension liability was based on the City’s contributions received by the pension plan relative {o the total
contributions received by pensicen plan for all participating employers as of June 30, 2014. the City’s proportion was 0.2126%.

For the year ended June 30, 2015, the City recognized pension expense of $196,361. At June 30, 2015, the City reported deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources related {o pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources

Difference between expected and aciual experience § 52,092 5 =
Changes of assumptions - -
Net difference between projected and actual eamnings
on pension plan investments - 330,949
Changes in propaortien and differences between City
contributions and proporiionate share of contributions 2 s
City contributions subsequent to the measurement date 76,314 -
Total 3 128,408 5 330,949
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Other amounts reported deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources related 1o pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year ended June 30:
2016 § 73,037

2017 73,037
2018 73,037
2018 73,037
2020 (9,700)
Thereafter (3,591)

5 278,857

Actuarial assumptions: The tolal pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2014 using the following actuarial
assumptions, applied to all pericds included in the measurement:

Infiation: 3%
Salary increases: 3.5% to 9.0% average, inciuding inflation
tnvesirnent rate of return: 7.5% net of pension plan investment expense

Mortaiity rates were based on the RP2000 combined healthy with blue collar adjustment as appropriate, with adjustments for generational mortality
improvement using scale AA for heaithy lives and no monalfity improvement for disabied lives.

The actuaral assumptions used in the July 1, 2014, valuation were based on the resulls of an actuarial experience study for the period July 1, 2007
fo June 30, 2012,

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building tfock method in which best-estimate ranges of
expected future real rates of retum (expacted returns, net of pension plan investment expense, and inflation) are developed for each major asset
class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expacted rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of retumn by the target
asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in
the pension plan's target asset aliocation as of June 30, 2014, are summarized in the following table:

Inftation: 3%
Salary increases: 3.5% to 8.0% averaga, including infiation
Investment rate of returry: 7.5% net of pensicn plan investment expense

Mortality rates were based on the RP2000 combined healthy with blue coltar adjustment as appropriate, with adiustrments for generational mortality
improvement using scale AA for healthy lives and no mortality improvement for disabled lives.

The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2014, valuation were based on the results of an actuarial experience study for the period July 1,
2007 to June 30, 2012.

The iong-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building block methed in which best-estimate ranges
of expected future real rates of return (expecied returns, net of pension plan invesiment expense, and inflaticn) are devetoped for each major
assat class. These ranges are combined to produce the Jong-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by
the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. Best estimates of arithmatic real rates of return for each major asset class
included in the pension plan's target asset allocation as of June 30, 2014, are summarized in the following table:

Target Long-Tern Expected

Asset Class Allocation Reat Rate of Retum
Fixed income 20% 5.48%
Domestic equity 37% 8.61%
Internaticnal equity 20% 9.24%
Reat Estate 10% 7.76%
Other assets 13% 6.88%

Discount Aate - The discount rate used to measurg the total pension fiability was 7.5%. The projection of cash flows used to detemming the discount
rate assumed that contributions from plan members will be made at the current contribution rate and that contributions from employers will be
made at contractually required rates, determined by State stalutes. Projected cash flows also assums the State of Oklahoma will continue
contributing 36% of the insurance premium, as esiablished by statute. Based on these assurnptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position
was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of
return on pension plan investments was applied to &l periods of projected benefit payments to detemmine the total pension liabifity,
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(B)

Sensitivity of the City’s proportionate share of the net pension liability to changes /n the discount rate: The foliowing presents the City's

proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the discount rate of 7.5 percent, as well as what the City's proportionate share of the
net pension liability would be if it were calculated using & discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (6.5 percent) or 1-percentage-point higher

(8.5 percent) than the curren{ rate:

1% Current 1%
Decrease Discount Rate Increase
{6.5%) (7.5%) (8.5%)
City's proporticnate share of the net
2,854,874 2,186,321 1,625,813

pension liability

Chanages in the Net Pension Liability

Increase {Decrease)

Total Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Pension
Liability Net Position Liability
{a) (b) {a) - (b)

Balances at June 30, 2013 £,552.118 4,037,484 2,514,632
Changes for the year:

Service cost 124,974 - 124,974

Interest 486,962 - 486,962

Differences between expected and actual

experience 61,791 - 61,791

Contributions - employer = 76,757 (76,757)

Contributions - employee - 169,113 {168,113)

Contributions - State of Okiahoma {non-

employer) 46,894 (48,894)

Net invesiment income = 713,490 {713,490)

Benefit payments, inciuding refunds of

employee contributions {368,531} (368,531) 5

Admiristrative expense - {4,216) 4,216

Other changes - - -

Net changes 305,196 633,607 {328,311)
Balances at June 30, 2014 8 6,857,312 5 4,670,991 $ 2,186,321

Pension plan fiduciary net position: Detailed information about the pension plan's fiduciary net position is avaiiatie in the separately issued financial
report of the FPRS; which can be located at www.ck.goviprs.

Other Post-Employment Benefits

For the year ended Juns 80, 2015, the City provided no post-employmeni benefits (other than pension} to terminated employees.

Commitments and Cantinaencies;

Litigafion

The City is a party to various legal proceedings which normally occur in the course of government cperations. The financial statements do not include
accrual or provisions for loss contingencies that may result from these proceedings. While the outcome of the above noted proceedings cannot be
predicted, due fo the insurance coverage mainiained by the City and the State statute relating to judgments, the City feels that any settlement or
judgment not covered by insurance would not have a material adverse effect on the financial condition of the City.

Grant Program Involvement

in the normai course of operations, the City participates in various federal or state grantfoan programs from year to year. The grant/ican programs
are often subject o additional audits by agents of the granting or loaning agency, the purpose of which is to ensure comgfiance with the specific
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{©

o

conditions of the grant or toan. Any fiability for reimbursement, which may arise as a resuli of these audits, cannct be reasonably determined at this
time, although il is believed the amount, if any, would nof be material.

Clinton Regional Hospital Lease

On January 1, 1898, the Clinten Hospifai Authority leased Clinton Regional Hospital to Baptist Mealth Care of Cklahoma, inc. (integris) for an initial
term of twenty (20) years beginning January 1, 1998 to, and including, December 31, 2017. The lease terms calied for an initial payment of $6 million
by Integris and annual payments of $125,000 beginning January 1, 1999 and $150.000 beginning January 1, 2010. This lease was terminated on
March 31, 2032.

On Aprit 1, 2012, the Clinion Hospital Authorily leased Clinton Regional Hospital to Clinton HMA, LLC dba Integris Regional Hospital for a term
beginning on April 1, 2012 and shall expire on December 31, 2017 with an option to extend the term of the lease for 3 conseculive § year arms on
he same terms and conditions applicabla to the initiatterm. The lease terms call for annual rent of $125,000.04 payable in equal monthly instalfments
of $10,416.67. The lease granis the tenant the option after the 4" year of the initial {erm of the lease lo purchase the hosgital premisas for a price

equal to the fair market value as determined by an appraiser.
Clinton Public Schoof District Lease

The Ciinton Public Works Authority issued $12,875,000 of revenue bonds during the 2011 fiscal year to finance school improvemnents approved by
volers on March 2, 2010, The Authority enfered into a ground lease with the Clinton Public School District to lease the land upon which the
improvemenis were to be constructed. Lease purchase acquisition payments and rental payments derived from the sublease agreement with the
District will be assigned to make the debt service payments on the bonds. Upon payment in full of the amounts due under the sublease agreement
{September 1, 2020 according to Schedula of Lease Purchase Acquisition Payments for Improvemants), possession and ownership of the
improvements will then belong to the District.

Subseguent Events:

None

Other Matters:

Effective July 1, 2014, the City implemented GASB No. 68, Accounting and Financiai Reporting for Pensions, an Amendment of GASE Statement No.
27. GASB No. 68 established standards for measuring and recognizing liabilities, delerred outflows of rescurces, deferred inflows of resourges, and
pension expenses. The Statement requires governments providing defined benefit pensions to recognize their long-term obligation for pension benefits
as a Hability for the first ime. GASB No. 68 also details the recognition and disciosure requirements for employers with liabilities to a defined bensefit
pension plans and for employers whoss employees are provided with defined contribution pensions. Defined benefit pensions are further classified by
GASE No. 68 as single employer plans, agent employer plans and cost sharing plans, and recognition and disclosure requirements are addrassed for
each classification.

Implementation of GASB No. 68 resuited in the restatement of beginning year net position to recegnrize the nel pension cbligation of the City. The
changes were as follows:

Governmental
Activities
Begininng Net Position 5 26,239,897
Restatement due to use tax repayment 5 (423,752)
Restatemnent dus to nat pension obligations (2,857,130}
Restated Beginning Net Position $ 22,958,015
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Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

Variance «
Orlginal Revised Favorable
Budget Revisions Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
REVEMNUES
Sales taxes § 2972000 s g $ 2,572,000 § 2778318 § (1936B1)
Use taxes 730,000 - 730,000 513,783 (218.217)
Hotel'molel taxes 410,000 - 410,600 362,519 (47,481}
ES11 taxes - - - 100,020 100,020
Franchise taxes 355,000 - 355,000 382,659 27,658
Cigaretie faxes 67,000 - 87,000 65,818 {1,084)
{icenses and permils 36,700 - 36,700 40,647 3,947
Cil & gas royalties 50,000 - 50,000 297,851 247,851
Fines and faeitures 118,000 - 118,600 134,214 16,211
Invesiment incoms 17,000 - 17,000 24,322 7322
Charges for services 392,300 “ 382,300 300,977 (91,323)
Rental income 20,000 w 20,000 20,075 75
Intergovermnmentat 153700 - 153,700 164,602 10,802
Intracity fees 568,926 - 568,926 568,925 N
Miscellaneous 23 500 - 23,500 16,945 (6,555)
Total revanues before carryover 5914,126 “ 5814,126 5771.77% (142,358)
Budgeled camyover (1) = - 4,177,887 4 177,887
Total revenuaes and budgeied carryover 5,914,126 - 5,914,128 5949 558 4,035,532
EXPENDITURES
Current;
General government:
Governing board and administration
Persanal services 469,640 - 469,650 440,41 29,279
Materials & supplies 9,150 - 89,150 B.443 707
Other services & charges 336,840 {20,000) 316,840 245,565 71,275
Finance
Parsonal services 313,595 - 313,565 306.751% 6,844
Materials & supplies 7,550 - 7.550 5,892 1,658
Other services & charges 84,401 = 84,401 82.738 1.665
Tatal general government 1,921,228 {20,000} 1.20% 226 1,089 798 111,428
Pubic safely and judiciary:
Legal and courls
Personal services 126,861 126,881 126,206 E£61
Materials & supplies 1,100 - 1100 048 152
Other services & charges 6,015 - 6,015 3.21G 2,805
Police
Personal services 1,548,192 1,548,162 1,341,300 205,892
Materials & supplies 90,000 - 96,000 69.71% 20,289
Other services & charges 41,725 - 41,725 32,322 9403
Fire
Personal services B34.919 {2.000) 832918 801,878 31,040
Materials & supplies 35,177 2,500 ITATT 39.827 (2,850)
Other services & charges 32,281 32.281 33,845 (1,564)
Inspection/code enforcement
Personal services 113,549 - 113,649 111,878 1,671
Materials & supplies 3,550 - 3,550 1,601 1,049
Other services & charges 25,020 25,020 7,518 17,501
Totat public safety and Judiciaty 2,858 489 = 2,858489 2,570,340 288,149
Transpartation:
Streat
Personal services 292,133 - 282,133 275,885 16,248
Materials & supplies §2.600 - §2,600 71,883 14,707
Other services & charges 128,000 129,000 148.540 (19,540}
Totat transporiation 513.733 - 513,733 502 318 11,415
Cultural, parks and recraation:
Parks and recreation
Personal sesvices 707,636 707 6386 §76.335 131.301
Materials & supplies 202,550 202,550 207,735 (5,185
Other services & charges 213,050 20,000 232,050 245,448 {12,398}
Cemetery
Personal services 87,548 “ 67,548 94,604 2,944
IMaterials & suppiies 28,550 - 28,550 20,333 8,217
Cther services & charges 4,500 b 4,500 1.600 2.80C
Total cuttural, parks and recreation 1,253,634 20,000 1,273,834 1,146,056 127,778

Ses gocompanying notes fo financial stalements. 50



Budget and Actual {Non-GAAP Budgetary Basls)

City of Clinton, Okiahoma

General Fund
June 30, 20158

Public Senvices:

Facilities maintenance
Personal services
Materals & supplies
Other services & charges

Tota! public services

Total expenditures
Revenue over (under} expendifures

QTHER FINANCING SOURCES {USES)
Cperating transfers in
Operating transfers out
Net olher financing sources (uses)

Revenues and other finanging sources over
{under) expenditures and olher uses

Fund balance at beginning of year (Non-GAAP budgetary basis)
Less budgeted carryover (1)

Fund balance at end of year (Non-GAAP budgetary basis)

ADJUSTMENTS TO GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES

Revenue and transfer accruals
Expenditure and transfer accruals
Prior pericd adjustment

Fusd balance at end of year (GAAP basis)

Variance -
Criginal Revised Favorable
Budget Revislons Budget Actial {Unfavorabie)
73,707 73,707 70,308 3,398
28,350 28,350 29,269 (819)
162,800 162,800 143,788 18,002
264,857 - 264 857 243,376 21,481
6,112 139 - 6,142,139 5,551,888 560,251
{198,013} - (198,013} 4,397 770 4,565,743
2,872,000 - 2,872,000 2,882,730 (89,270}
{3,627.000) {3.627,000} (3,398 535} 228,305
{655.000) - (655,000} 1515 965) 138,035
{B53.013) - {853,013} 3,881,805 4,734,818
3,972,710 - 3972710 3,700,508 (272,202}
- - - {4177.887} {4.177,887}
$ 3.119.697 - 3 3115697 $ 3404426 § 284729

(258,291)

125,269

{423.752)

S 2,B47.652

(1} Budgets include fund balances carried over from prior years. it is not revenue of ihe current period. but s presented as revenue anly for budgetary reporting purposas.,

See accompanying notes 1o financial ststements.
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Scheduies of Required Supplementary Information
SCHEDULE OF THE CITY'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABLITY

Okiahoma Police Pension Retirement Plan

2015*
City's portion of the net pension liahility (asset) 0.2422%
City's proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset) $ (81,545)
City's covered-employee payrall 3 617,171
City's proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset) as a percentage of its
covered-employee payroll -13.21%
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability 101.53%

*

The amount presented for each fiscal year were determined as of the fiscal year-end that occurred previ

SCHEDULE OF CITY CONTRIBUTIONS

Oklahoma Police Pension Retirement Plan

2015
Contractually required contribution $ 80,232
Contributions in relation to the contractually reguired contribution (80,232)
Contribution deficiency (excess) $ =
City's covered-employee payroll $ 617,171
Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 13.00%

See accompanying notes {o financial statements. 52



Schedules of Required Supplementary Information
SCHEDULE OF THE CITY'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABLITY

Oklahoma Fire Pension Retirement Plan

2015*
City's portion of the net pension liability {asset) 0.2126%
City's proportionate share of the net pension liability {asset) $2,186,321
City's covered-employee payroll $ 538,246
City's proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset) as a percentage of its
covered-employee payrall 406%
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liabitity 68.12%

¥ The amount presented for each fiscal year were determined as of the fiscal year-end that occurred previ

SCHEDULE OF CITY CONTRIBUTIONS

Oklahoma Fire Pension Retirement Plan

2015*
Contractually required contribution 3 76,314
Contributions in relation to the contractually required contribution {76,314)
Contribution deficiency (excess) 3 -
City's covered-employee payroll $ 538,248
Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 14.18%

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 53



Schedules of Required Supplementary Information

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE CITY'S NET PENSION LIABLITY AND RELATED RATIOS

Oklahoma Municipal Retirement Fund

SINCE INITIAL APPLICATION

Total pension liability
Service cost
Interest
Changes in benefit terms
Differences between expected and actual experience
Changes in assumptions
Benefit payments, including refunds of employee contributions

Net change in total pension liability
Total pension liability - beginning
Total pension liability - ending (a)

Plan fiduciary net position
Contributions - empioyer
Contributions - employee
Net investment income
Benefit payments, including refunds of employee contributions
Administrative expense
Other
Net change in plan fiduciary net position

Plan fiduciary net position - beginning
Plan fiduciary net position - ending (b}

City's net pension liability - ending (a) - (b)

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability
Covered-employee payroll

City's net pension Hability as a percentage of covered-employee payroll

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 54

2015*

5 318193
766,152

(567,102)

$ 517,243
9,845,902
$10,363,145

299,965
127,630
1,614,704

(567,102)

(23,876)

1,451,321

9,877,199
$11,328,520

_$_(965,375)

108.32%
$ 2,191,279

-44 06%



BRITTON, KUYKENDALL, & MILLER
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

JAMES M. KUYKENDALL 204 E. FRANKLIN - PO. BOX 507 BRANCH OFFICE:
RICK D. MILLER WEATHERFORD, OK 73096 106 N. COLLEGE - PO, BOX 266
580-772-3598 CORDELL, OK 73632
FAX 580-772-3085 380-832.5313

FAX 580-832-5314

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED
ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

The Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Clinton, Oklahoma

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Govemnment Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of
City of Clinton, Oklahoma, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2015, and the related notes to the
financial statements, which collectively comprise City of Clinton, Oklahoma's basic financial statements,
and have issued our report thereon dated December 14, 2015,

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered City of Clinton, Oklahoma's
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
Acgordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and
correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of
the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a fimely basis. A
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe
than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether City of Clinton, Oklahoma's financial statements
are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noricompliance with which could have a direct and material
effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance
with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards in the United States of America.

MEMBER OF AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
MEMBER OF OKLAHOMA SOCIETY OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
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Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with

Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly,
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Badte Ky + Miller
BRITTON, KUYKENDALL AND MILLER
Ceriified Public Accountants

Weatherford, Oklahoma
December 14, 2015
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BRITTON, KUYKENDALL, & MILLER
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

BRANCH OFFICE:
JAMES M. KUYKENDALL 204 E. FRANKLIN - P.O. BOX 507
RICK D. MILLER WEATHERFORD, OK 73096 106 N. COLLEGE - PO. BOX 266
. 580-772-3596 CORDELL, OK 73632
FAX 580-772-3085 380-832-5313

FAX 580-832-5314

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH
MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE
REQUIRED BY OMB CIRCULAR A-133

The Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Clinton, Oklahoma

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited City of Clinton, Oklahoma's compliance with the types of compliance requirements
described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect
on each of City of Clinton, Oklahoma’s major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2015. City of
Clinton, Oklahoma's major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management's Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants
applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of City of Clinton, Oklahoma's major

. federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We
conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of
States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on
a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about City of
Clinton, Oklahoma's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances,

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federa
program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of City of Clinton, Oklahoma's
compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, City of Clinton, Oklahoma, complied, in all materia! respects, with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal
programs for the year ended June 30, 2015,

MEMBER OF AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
MEMBER OF OKLAHOMA SQCIETY OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
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Report on Internal Control over Compliance

Management of City of Clinton, Oklahoma, is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal
control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and
performing our audit of compliance, we considered City of Clinton, Oklahoma's internal control over
compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major
federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on
internal controf over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal conirol over compliance. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency,
or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not
be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type
of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal
control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing
of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of OMB
Circular A-133. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

P ko 282 « ML
BRITTON, KUYKENDALL AND MILLER
Certified Public Accountants

Weatherford, Oklahoma
December 14, 2015
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City of Clinton, Okiahoma
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended June 30, 2015

Federal Grantor/Pass-Through
Grantor/Program Title

Department of Housing and Urban Development:
Passed through the Oklahoma Department of Commerce:
15668 CDBG-CIP 13

18917 CDBG 01
15928 CDRG 07
15928 CDBG 08
15830 CDBG 98
15931 CDBG 02

Sub-Total

BDepartment of Justice

Passed through the Oklahoma District Attorneys Council
Byrne JAG Praogram

Department of Transportation- Federal Aviation Administration;
Airport Improvement Program 3-40-0021-012-2014
Airport Improvement Program 3-40-0021-013-2015

Sub-Total

Department of Transportation- Federal Highway Administration

Passed through the State of Oklahoma Department of Transportation

Federal Transportation Community & System Preservation (TCSP)
Federal Aid Surface Transportation (STP)

Total of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Federal Program
CFDA or Award Revenue Federal
Number Amount Collectad Expenditures
14.228 38,400 19,200 19,200
14.228 112,579 112,578 112,579
14.228 18,818 18,818 18,819
14.228 7.081 7,081 7,081
14.228 3,485 3,485 3,485
14.228 1.036 1,036 1,036
181,400 162,200 162,200
16.738 9,880 9,880 9,880
20.106 217,715 217,715 207,365
20.106 196,104 - 7,380
413,819 217,715 214,745
20.205 377,287 377,287 377,287
20.205 1,250,000 1,250,000 1,250,000
1,627,287 1,627,287 1,627,287
$ 2232386 % 2017082 3 2,014,112

Note A - This schedule was prepared on an accrual (GAAP) basis of accounting consistent with the preparation of the

basic financial statements,

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 58



CITY OF CLINTON, OKLAHOMA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

SUMMARY OF AUDITOR'S RESULTS

TYPE OF REPORT ISSUED ON THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS: Unqualified Opinion

MATERIAL WEAKNESSES IDENTIFIED

IN INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING: No

SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCIES IDENTIFIED
IN INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING THAT ARE NOT CONSIDERED
TO BE MATERIAL WEAKNESSES: No

DISCLOSURES OF NONCOMPLIANCE MATERIAL
TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS: (None Reported)

MATERIAL WEAKNESSES IDENTIFIED IN
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER MAJOR FEDERAL
AWARD PROGRAMS: No

SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCIES IDENTIFIED IN
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER MAJOR FEDERAL
AWARD PROGRAMS THAT ARE NOT
CONSIDERED TO BE MATERIAL WEAKNESSES: No

TYPE OF REPORT ISSUED ON COMPLIANCE
FOR MAJOR PROGRAMS: Unqualified Opinion

AUDIT FINDINGS REQUIRED TO BE REPORTED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 510(A) OF

OMB CIRCULAR A-133: No
MAJOR PROGRAMS: - 20.205 Federal Transportation Community & System
Preservation (TCSP)

20.205 Federal Aid Surface Transportation (STP)

DOLLAR THRESHOLD USED TO DISTINGUISH
BETWEEN TYPE A AND B PROGRAMS: $300,000

QUALIFIED LOW-RISK AUDITEE: No

60



